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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FYLDE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Fylde Borough Council (‘the Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 
2018 which comprise the Authority Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement(s), the Authority Balance 
Sheet(s), the Authority Movement in Reserves Statement(s), the Authority Cash Flow Statement(s), the Collection 
Fund and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.  
 
In our opinion the financial statements:  
 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2018 and of the Authority’s 
expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 
 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18. 

 
 
Basis for opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable 
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent 
of the Authority in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.  
 
 
Going concern   
 
We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is 
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis 
for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.  We have nothing to report 
in these respects.   
 
 
Other information published with the financial statements   
 
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information published with the financial statements, including 
the Narrative Statement and the Annual Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial 
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other information. 
In our opinion the other information published with the financial statements for the financial year is consistent with 
the financial statements.  
 
 
Chief Financial Officer’s responsibilities 
 
As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 24, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for: the 
preparation of the Authority’s financial statements in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18; such internal control 
as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting on the 
assumption that the functions of the Authority will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 
 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.  
 
A full description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities 
 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS 
 
Report on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources  
 
Conclusion 
 
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 
2017, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Fylde Borough Council put in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018. 
 
 
Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources   
 
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and 
effectiveness of these arrangements. 
 
We are required under Section 20(1) (c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the 
Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Authority has 
put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are 
not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 
 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the 
specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether Fylde Borough 
Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve 
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined 
this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether 
Fylde Borough Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018. 
 
 
Statutory reporting matters  
 
The Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to you if: 
 

 any matters have been reported in the public interest under Section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of, the audit;  
 

 any recommendations have been made under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;  
 

 an application has been made to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under 
Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;  
 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 
 

 an advisory notice has been issued under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 
 

 an application for judicial review has been made under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014.  

 
We have nothing to report in these respects 
 
 
THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES   
 
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the 
Authority, as a body, those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the members 
of the Authority, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.  
 
 
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Fylde Borough Council in accordance with 
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Amanda Latham 
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants 
Manchester 
 
30th July 2018 
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NARRATIVE REPORT BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

  
 The Council is statutorily required to produce annual accounts, and this document sets out the Council’s 

Statement of Accounts for the financial year ending 31st March 2018. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 require me, as the Council’s responsible financial officer, to certify that they ‘present a true and fair view 
of the financial position of the authority’. The Council is then formally required to approve and publish the 
Statement of Accounts no later than 31st July 2018. This function is delegated at Fylde Council to the Audit 
and Standards Committee. Following approval, the Statement of Accounts must be signed and dated by the 
member presiding at the meeting at which approval is given. 
 
The accounts are audited by the Council’s External Auditors, KPMG, who also review whether the Authority 
has made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and 
issue a conclusion on this, as part of their report to those charged with governance, to the Council’s Audit and 
Standards Committee at the conclusion of the audit.  
 
In my role as Chief Financial Officer and the Council’s statutory Section 151 Officer, I am required to prepare 
a narrative report to accompany the Statement of Accounts. This narrative report is prepared in a style that 
aims to enable readers to understand and interpret the accounting statements. By producing this report, I aim 
to give electors, local residents, Council Members, partners, stakeholders and other interested parties 
confidence that public money which has been received and spent, has been properly accounted for and that 
the financial standing of the Council is secure. 
 
The format of the Statement of Accounts is heavily prescribed and follows the requirements as set out by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code), and the Service Reporting Code of Practice for Local 
Authorities 2017/18 (SeRCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 bring forward the timetable for the closure of the accounts in respect 
of 2017/18 and subsequent financial years. 
 
Prior to the period for the exercise of public rights, which must include the first 10 working days of June, a 
local authority in England is required to publish the unaudited statement of accounts. In practical terms this is 
by 31st May each year. The Regulations also require that local authorities in England publish their audited 
statement of accounts by 31st July each year. 
 
The purpose of this report is to assist the readers’ interpretation of the accounts and to provide an overall 
summary of the Council’s financial performance for 2017/18, to explain the Council’s financial position as at 
31st March 2018, and to give a summary insight into what the financial future holds for the Council. 
 

 

2. PROFILE OF THE BOROUGH 

  
 Fylde Borough consists of the seaside towns of Lytham and St Anne’s-on-Sea, the market town of Kirkham 

and a rural hinterland with numerous small picturesque villages. St Anne’s-on-Sea is a traditional seaside 
resort with a Victorian pier, quality accommodation and fine floral displays, a gentler and more peaceful tourism 
destination than Blackpool. ‘Leafy’ Lytham is a desirable location for residents and visitors with a number of 
high value properties, an attractive Victorian shopping centre, a grade one listed hall in pleasant surroundings 
and an expansive seafront Green with the iconic white Windmill facing out to the sea.  Kirkham is a traditional 
market town surrounded by beautiful countryside with strong links to neighbouring Wesham, Treales, 
Roseacre, Wrea Green and Freckleton.  
 
The rural hinterland provides a contrasting lifestyle and tourism experience with countryside pursuits such as 
walking, cycling, horse riding and boating complemented with high quality, award winning, eating 
establishments and accommodation, all mixed into a vast farming community.  The rich heritage within the 
towns and villages has helped to make the Fylde countryside a destination in its own right.  
 
Fylde’s population of around 78,000 live in about 35,000 households over a geographical area of 166 square 
kilometres. The population is forecast to rise to 84,200 by 2039.   
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Fylde is one of the safest areas of the country when compared with its ‘family’ group of local authorities based 
on population and demographics. The borough has been a popular retirement destination for many years, 
resulting in a higher than average percentage of the population being over 60 years of age. 
 
Economic Profile 
Fylde has a diverse economy that is centred on manufacturing, the energy sector, aeronautics, farming and 
tourism industries. There are two regionally significant employers in BAE Systems at Warton and the Toshiba 
Westinghouse nuclear processing plant at Springfields. Other major employers include the public sector 
through the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) and Land Registry, financial services organisations and 
the many hotels, cafes, restaurants and leisure facilities reflecting the tourism aspect of the local economy. 
 
In October 2011, the government created a single Lancashire Enterprise Zone that covers two separate sites, 
one of which is located around the BAE Systems manufacturing facility and runway at Warton in the council’s 
area.  Within these sites financial incentives and a simplified planning system are designed to encourage 
businesses and create employment. The zone is operated by BAE Systems and Lancashire County Council 
(with strategic oversight being provided by the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership). The enterprise zone is 
focussed on high-end manufacturing that is related to the military aeronautic industry, and as such is designed 
to complement existing production at the BAE Systems facility. 
 
In the 2015 Budget, the Chancellor announced that a further Enterprise Zone would be established at 
Blackpool Airport and adjoining land, which straddles the border between Fylde and Blackpool Council areas. 
This Enterprise Zone came into being in April 2016 with a focus on the energy, manufacturing, service 
industries (insurance / financial) and aviation business development. The Council is represented on the 
Enterprise Zone Programme Board along with Blackpool Council and private sector partners. A specialist 
energy college within the enterprise zone was completed and opened during 2017/18, forming part of the 
Blackpool & the Fylde College. Enterprise Zones are designated by Government for a period of 25 years.  
 
 
Political and Organisational Structure 
The Borough is divided into 21 wards each represented by one or more elected councillors.  The Council holds 
‘all out’ elections every four years with the last election being held in May 2015 at which a Conservative 
majority was returned for the fourth consecutive election. Fylde is a two tier district council with Lancashire 
County Council being responsible for delivering the upper tier authority functions.   
 
The Council has operated a committee system of governance since May 2015 after a change of governance 
from a Cabinet system was mandated through a referendum triggered by a petition. The Council Leader 
belongs to the Conservative majority group. Further details of the political and organisational structure of the 
Council are set out in the Annual Governance Statement which can be found towards the end of this document.  
 

 

3. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 

  
 The Council has established and embedded sound financial management practices, the cornerstone of which 

is a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). The strategy is updated and reported to Members on a regular 
basis, with the latest update being approved at the Council meeting of 5th March 2018. In that report I 
concluded, having taken account of the major items of expenditure and income and their sensitivity to change, 
together with the risks detailed in the report, that the finances of the Council are robust.  
 
The purpose of the MTFS is detailed within that document, together with details of: the Vision for the Borough; 
the Council’s Strategic Planning and Performance Management Framework; the Council’s Capital Strategy 
and Asset Management Plan; Savings and Growth proposals; Reserves and Balances provision; details of 
the Council’s Capital Programme; key areas of financial risk facing the Council; and a five year financial 
forecast for the Council. One key aim of the MTFS is to ensure that the resources available to the Council are 
aligned with the priorities set out within the Council’s approved Corporate Plan. Both the MTFS and the 
Corporate Plan can be found on the Council’s website at www.fylde.gov.uk.   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

http://www.fylde.gov.uk/
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4. 
CHANGES INTRODUCED BY THE CODE OF PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY ACCOUNTING 
2017/18 (THE CODE) 

  
 For 2017/18 ‘The Code’ has introduced a number of accounting changes: 

 

 Going Concern Basis of Accounting – the provisions in Section 3.4 (Presentation of Financial 
Statements) of the 2017/18 Code have been augmented to confirm the going concern basis of 
accounting for local authorities. 

 Narrative Reporting – the 2017/18 Code reflects the new principles based framework for the 
production of the Narrative Report. 

 Accounting and Reporting by Pension Funds – the Code has been updated to reflect the requirement 
for the new disclosure of investment management transaction costs and clarification on the approach 
to investment concentration disclosure. 
 

Further details on these changes as applicable to Fylde Council are included in the notes to the Accounts and 
are set out in the Accounting Policies. 
 
In addition to the above, the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, which 
came into effect on 1 April 2017, require the Council to publish certain information with regard to the time and 
cost of employee engagement on trade union activities. This information is accessible on the Council website 
at the following link:   www.Fylde.gov.uk 
 

 

5. THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

  
 The Core Financial Statements contained within the accounts and the purpose of each is set out below: -   

 

 Expenditure and Funding Analysis – this shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from 
resources (government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in 
comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making 
purposes between the council’s Programme Committees. 

 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this consists of two sections: the first section 
showing entries for income and expenditure arising from day to day operational services and the 
second section showing the increase or decrease to net worth as a movement in fair value of assets.  

  

 Movement in Reserves Statement – this is a summary of the movement in year on the different 
reserves held by the Authority analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (those which can be applied to fund 
expenditure) and un-usable reserves (those which cannot be used to fund expenditure).  

 

 Balance Sheet – this sets out the Council’s assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2018 and how these 
are funded (by reserves, borrowing, provisions and other balances).   

 

 Cash Flow Statement – this summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions 
with third parties for revenue and capital purposes.  

  

 Notes to the Core Financial Statements – these assist in the interpretation of the accounts by 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 
Additional statements accompanying the accounts: 
 

 Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts – this identifies the officer who is 
responsible for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs. 

 

 Collection Fund - this was established to maintain a separate fund for the collection and distribution 
of amounts due in respect of council tax and non-domestic rates, as a requirement for all billing 
authorities under the Local Government Finance Act 1988.    

 

 Glossary – an explanation of some of the key technical terms used in these accounts. 
 

In line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2017/18 the Annual Governance Statement is 
included within the Statement of Accounts. 

 
 

http://www.fylde.gov.uk/
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6. THE COUNCIL’S SPENDING 

  
 The Council effectively has two types of expenditure: 

 

 Revenue expenditure – this is essentially the day to day costs incurred by the Council in providing 
services, including for example, employee costs, premises running costs, transport related costs and 
supplies and services. 

 

 Capital expenditure – this is essentially one-off major items of expenditure relating to the purchase 
of new assets or expenditure which materially improves the working life of existing assets. 

 
At the Annual Budget Setting Council meeting, the Council plans and approves how much it is going to spend 
in the coming year and reflects these spending plans as budgets. It calculates how much money needs to be 
raised from Council Tax having allowed for income and government grants, and determines how much it can 
raise from existing resources, contributions from outside sources or borrowing to fund its capital expenditure. 
 
 

 6.1 REVENUE EXPENDITURE 
 
This part of the report deals with the revenue outturn position for the Council for the financial year ended 31st 
March 2018. 
 

 Net Budget Requirement 
 
On the 5th March 2018, the Council approved a Revised Revenue Budget net requirement of £8.794m for 
2017/18.   
 
Throughout 2017/18, in response to the uncertainty surrounding the nature and level of current and future 
income streams as a consequence of changes in national funding arrangements, there has been close control 
of expenditure. Officers with budget holder responsibility were instructed to remain prudent and minimise 
expenditure commitments and maximise efficiencies and savings wherever possible. That instruction remains 
in place, and has resulted in the generation of in-year savings throughout the majority of 2017/18.  
 
The outturn position for 2017/18 was a net budget requirement of £8.472m, resulting in a favourable variance 
before slippage of £0.322m.  
 
 

 Financing 
 
In relation to financing, the outturn position for 2017/18 was net financing received during the year of £10.292m 
compared to a budget of £9.917m, resulting in a favourable variance of £0.375m. 
 
The underlying favourable outturn position after taking account of the favourable outturn variances on the net 
budget requirement of £0.322m and financing of £0.375m, and after adjusting for slippage of £0.137m is 
therefore £0.560m.  
 
At its meeting on 25th June 2018 the Finance and Democracy Committee will be recommended to approve a 
transfer in the sum of £0.560m into the Capital Investment Reserve to provide additional financing resources 
for future capital projects. 
 
The Council accounts for the Council Tax and Business Rates income that it collects through a ‘Collection 
Fund’. Under the accounting arrangements for Council Tax and Business Rates this surplus is split between 
the Government and the other precepting bodies. The surplus on the Collection Fund at the end of 2017/18 
was £0.382m with the Fylde Council share being £0.192m. 
 
A proportion of the collection fund surplus arises as a result of the reduction in the provision for outstanding 
Business Rate appeals against the Valuation Office assessment of the Rateable Value of business properties. 
The total value of the provision for appeals has been reduced to £3.656m in 2017/18 from £4.922m in 2016/17, 
with Fylde Council’s share of the provision at year end being £1.463m (2016/17 £1.969m). 
 
The reduction reflects the settlement of a number of claims during 2017/18.  
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It is anticipated that this revised level of provision is sufficient to meet the full cost of the outstanding appeals 
currently lodged.  
 
The Council joined the Lancashire Business Rate Pool with effect from 1st April 2017 in order to benefit from 
a reduced government levy on business rate growth which has resulted in a higher level of retained Business 
Rates. Full details of the pool and its benefits to the council are set out within a note to the Collection Fund.  
 
However the government has announced its intention to further reform the Business Rate Retention 
arrangements with effect from 2019/20, one of the effects being to bring into question the viability of local 
Business Rate pools. Consequently the new arrangements may result in changes to the amounts of Business 
Rate income that is retained by Fylde Council which are, as yet however, unquantifiable. Consequently the 
Council’s Financial Forecast assumes that the pool will continue to operate for 2018/19 only and thereafter 
will cease to deliver the financial benefits to Fylde Council that existed in 2017/18 and that are anticipated in 
2018/19. 
 
Each future update to the Financial Forecast will include the effects of any such changes as and when they 
are known.  
 
The collection fund accounting processes mean that there are significant timing differences between when a 
deficit or surplus on the collection fund occurs and when the relevant payments or receipts are made to or 
from the relevant parties to the collection fund. The Council’s Financial Forecast will be updated during 
2018/19 to reflect the anticipated timing of cash flows to and from the collection fund. 
 
 

 A Summary of the outturn position and the transfers to reserves described above are shown in Table 1 below: 
 

 Table 1 – General Fund Revenue Outturn Position and Transfers to Reserves 2017/18 
 

  Budget Actual Variance  

  £m 
 

£m £m  

  £m 
 

£m £m  

 Net expenditure for the year 8.794 8.472 (0.322) (Fav) 
 Net financing for the year (9.917) (10.292) (0.375) (Fav) 

 Surplus of resources for the year (1.123) (1.820) (0.697) (Fav) 
      
 Less :     
 budgeted transfer to M55 Link Road Reserve 0.041 0.041 -  
 budgeted transfer to Capital Investment Reserve 1.082 1.082 -  
 required transfer to GF revenue balances re slippage - 0.137 0.137 (Fav) 
      

 Balance - further transfers to reserves - 
        

(0.560) (0.560) (Fav) 

      
 Analysis of further transfers to reserves:     
 - to Capital Investment Reserve     - (0.560) (0.560) (Fav) 
        

 Total further transfers to reserves    - (0.560) (0.560) (Fav) 
      

 
 Full details and further analysis of expenditure, income and budget variances will be set out in the Medium 

Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) Outturn Report to be reported to the Finance and Democracy Committee on 
25th June 2018. A copy of the report can be found on the Council’s website at www.fylde.gov.uk.  

 
 
 

 Cost of Services 2017/18 
 
The 2017/18 Gross Cost of General Fund Services, excluding internal support service recharges, is analysed 
by service area in Table 2 below: 
 

 

http://www.fylde.gov.uk/
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 Table 2 – Gross Cost of General Fund Services 2017/18 

  Outturn    

  £’m    
 Service:     
 Refuse Collection 2.747    
 Street Cleaning 0.970    
 Other Environmental Health 1.183    
 Development Control, Building Control and Local Plans 1.824    
 Tourism and Leisure 2.675    
 Housing 0.773    
 Housing Benefits 19.602    
 Local Tax Collection 0.843    
 Economic Development and Regeneration 0.177    
 Other 5.756    

 Gross Expenditure Totals 36.550    

      
 Income and Grants:     
 Other Government Grants (incl Housing Benefit Subsidy Grant) (18.865)    
 Other Grants and Contributions (1.612)    
 Other Income, Fees and Charges etc. (7.601)    

 Income and Grants Totals (28.078)    

      

 Net Expenditure for the Year 8.472  (as per Table 1) 

      

 
  

6.2 INCOME 
 
The Council finances its net operating expenditure from Council Tax, General Government Grants and 
Revenue Support Grant and, under revised arrangements since 2013/14, the local share of Business Rates. 
The contribution made by each is shown in the following graph:– 
 

 
 Source of Funding 2017/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

  
Council Tax 
 
Fylde Borough Council charged an average Band D Council Tax of £195.76 for 2017/18 (excluding Town and 
Parish precepts), which was a 2.62% increase from the 2016/17 average Band D charge. This represented 
an increase for a Band D property of £4.99 which is within the Central Government capping limit of £5.00 for 
a band D property. Individual year-on-year changes within the Borough varied due to the impact of Town and 
Parish Council precepts and the liability for Special Expense charges in Lytham and St Annes. The actual in-
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year rate of collection in 2017/18 was 96.8%. The collection rates for 2016/17 and 2015/16 were 96.2% and 
96.4% respectively. Ultimately the Council collects in the region of 99% of Council Tax. In 2017/18 the Council 
retained £5.773m of Council Tax income. 
 
Government Grants and Non Domestic Rates  
 
Income from government grants received in 2017/18, including New Homes Bonus, totalled £2.098m. The 
Council’s share of local business rate income for 2017/18, including grant support for national discount 
schemes and the surplus/deficit from the previous year, totalled £4.421m. 
 

 
 

 6.3 CAPITAL 
 
In 2017/18 total capital expenditure was £7.313m as compared to a revised total programme of £7.844m. After 
adjusting for slippage of £0.521m this leaves a net underspend for the year of £10k. An analysis of how the 
money was spent, and financed, is shown in Table 3 below. 
 

  
Table 3 – Capital Expenditure and Sources of Financing 2017/18 
 

     

 Expenditure by Scheme: £’000 £’000  

     
 Finance & Democracy Committee:    
 Accommodation Project  500   

 sub-total     500   
 Tourism & Leisure Committee:    
 Fairhaven Lake and Gardens 

Play area - Bridges Playing Field, Warton 
Fleetwood Road Playing Field, Wesham 
Mussel Tank Project  

108 
107 
25 

130 

  

 sub-total     370  
 Operational Management Committee:    
 Replacement Vehicles 

Public Transport Improvements 
Fairhaven & Church Scar Coast Protection Scheme 
Fylde Headlands Preliminary Work 

1,297 
18 

2,995 
8 

  

 sub-total    4,318  
 Environment, Health & Housing Committee:    
 Disabled Facilities Grants Programme  

93 St Albans Road – Compulsory Purchase Order 
Affordable Housing Scheme – 93 St Albans Road 
Affordable Housing Scheme – Sunnybank Mill, Kirkham 
Affordable Warmth Scheme 
Housing Needs Grants   

1,010 
89 
56 

460 
15 

8 

  

 sub-total     1,638  
 Planning Committee:    
 Woodlands Road Regeneration Scheme - Town Centre Phase 3 

St Annes Regeneration Schemes 
6 

162 
  

 Staining Regeneration Scheme 
M55 Link Road – design works 

40 
279 

  

 sub-total        487   
     

 Total Expenditure     7,313   
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 Financing: £’000 £’000  

     
 Grants & Contributions 

Internal Borrowing 
5,483 

995 
  

 Capital Receipts 
Revenue Contribution 
Accommodation Project Reserve 

186 
24 

500 

  

 Capital Investment Reserve 125   

     

 Total Financing     7,313   

     

 
 
 

7. TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

  
 The Council is bound by the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the 

CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, and it is required to comply with both these 
Codes through regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003.  
 
The Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/18 to 2021/22 have been agreed by 
the Council.  Performance is monitored and reported during the year. For 2017/18 the Council has complied 
with all agreed internal procedures and the Prudential Indicators set for borrowing have been managed within 
the limits set. 
 
The security of investments is the Council’s main investment objective. This is achieved by adhering to the 
Treasury Management Strategy, as approved by Council on 2nd March 2017 and subsequently revised and 
approved again by Council on 4th December 2017. The investment activity during the year conformed to the 
approved strategy and the Council had no liquidity difficulties.  

A key Prudential Indicator for every Council is the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The CFR is the 
amount that the Council needs to borrow in order to fund its capital expenditure requirements: it is in effect 
the Council’s underlying need to borrow. The CFR for Fylde Borough Council for the year ended 31st March 
2018 was £5.7m. The Council is able to borrow money from either the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) (an 
agency of HM Treasury), from banks, building societies, or from other public bodies. The Council’s borrowing 
need as at 31st March 2018 was met by a combination of PWLB borrowing of £1.0m and internal cash 
balances. These amounts are analysed in the notes to the Balance Sheet. The interest paid in respect of the 
Council’s external debt in 2017/18 was £39k (£49k in 2016/17).   

The Authorised Limit for External Debt is a further key Prudential Indicator that controls the overall level of 
borrowing and is a statutory limit set by the Council that must not be breached. The Council’s authorised limit 
for external debt for 2017/18 was £9.0m. The Council’s actual total debt at 31st March 2018 of £1.0m was 
significantly below the Authorised Limit as a result of the use of internal borrowing (cash balances used to 
meet the CFR in place of external borrowing). 

No new external borrowing has been taken since 2010/11 as internal borrowing has been the most effective 
means of funding capital expenditure. This has the effect of also lowering the overall treasury risk by reducing 
both external debt and temporary investments. The chart below shows estimated external borrowing and the 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) from 2013 to 2022: 
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During the year, cash sums managed internally by the Council have been invested for periods of up to twelve 
months with approved banks, money market funds, and other Local Authorities. The Council held an average 
cash balance of £20.5m of internally managed funds during 2017/18. The overall performance was a gross 
return of 0.35%, compared with a benchmark return of 0.21%. Interest earned was £74k compared to a revised 
budget of £64k. The level of interest from investments was in excess of the revised budget as the actual level 
of external investments was higher than was anticipated due to the Council benefitting from a more favourable 
cash-flow position than was forecast. 
 
Economic Background 
 
The UK economy grew by 1.8% in the year 2017 due largely to a more favourable outlook in the international 
economy, rather than any specific UK factors. The Consumer Price index (CPI), used as a measure of inflation, 
rose to 3.1% in the year to November 2017 before falling back to 2.3% for the year to March 2018.  The rise 
in CPI was as a result of rising import prices which was in turn a consequence of the fall in the value of sterling 
following the 2016 EU referendum result. The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) increased 
the Bank Rate by 0.25% to 0.5% in November 2017, the first rate increase in ten years. The increase in Bank 
Rates resulted in slightly higher money market rates. 

 
 Pension Fund 

 
During 2017/18 the Council made a lump sum £2.547m pre-payment of employer pension contributions in 
respect of 2018/19 and 2019/20. The Council did this to secure a discount from the pension fund which 
outweighed the equivalent investment income that could be generated from investing the money elsewhere. 
The prepayment for these two years has been charged directly against the Pension Liability in 2017/18. The 
net liability on the pension fund as shown on the balance sheet was therefore reduced from £25.774m to 
£23.227m as at 31st March 2018 (£28.612m as at 31st March 2017). As a result of these transactions it is 
recognised that there is an imbalance between the net pension liability and the pension reserve totals at the 
reporting date. This imbalance will be removed over the next two years.   
 
The pension fund deficit has fluctuated widely over the past few years, with a significant impact being the 
financial assumptions made by the scheme actuary, Mercer Ltd. The deficit has a substantial impact on the 
net worth of the authority as recorded in the Balance Sheet.  Statutory arrangements for funding the pension 
fund mean that the deficit will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of 
employees as assessed periodically by the pension fund actuary. The last full revaluation was undertaken in 
2016. Full details of the scheme history and assumptions used by the actuary are included in note 41 to the 
accounts. 
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8. REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL’S FINANCIAL POSITION 

  
 The favourable revenue outturn represents a further improvement to the overall financial position of the 

Council which will be reflected in future updates to the Financial Forecast during 2018/19. It allows for a 
further contribution to be made to the Capital Investment Reserve in the sum of £0.560m which will provide 
additional financing resources for future capital projects – which in turn reduces the need for the Council 
to borrow. 
 
Through continued focus on the importance of financial stability, the Council has delivered a significant 
savings programme over a number of years and has continued to reduce senior management costs and 
other overheads. Ongoing modernisation work and business improvement will continue to make Council 
services more efficient, save money and maintain high quality frontline services to customers. This work 
has yielded ongoing savings to help improve the Council’s financial position over that period. For Fylde 
Council to continue to successfully meet the new challenges that it faces it is vital that this approach is re-
doubled and that all reasonable opportunities for further cost-reduction measures and for the generation 
of additional income are seriously considered. Prudent financial management in previous years has 
provided a level of reserves which allows the necessary time to determine how this council can best 
respond to the increased challenges.  

 
 Reserves & Balances 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 In addition to the non-earmarked General Fund Reserve shown in the graph above the Council also has a 
number of ear-marked revenue reserves, set-aside for specific purposes. The total of these ear-marked 
reserves at 31st March 2018 is £9.645m. Full details of these reserves are shown at Note 8 to these accounts.  
 
The current Capital Programme is fully-funded. Furthermore, in order to provide a resource for future additions 
to the Capital Programme the Council has created a Capital Investment Reserve. Following favourable outturn 
positions in recent years it has been possible to transfer resources into that reserve which have provided 
funding for numerous capital schemes. The consequence of Member decisions to limit capital scheme growth 
in recent years is a reduced overall requirement to borrow which in turn results in a reduction in borrowing 
costs. 
 

 

9. ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE AND CULTURE 

  
 Fylde Council is currently performing well. The Council enjoys high levels of employee and resident 

satisfaction (see Residents Survey summary table below) that are measured every year, a robust Medium 
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Term Financial Strategy and budget that currently requires no service reductions or redundancies over the 
next three years. The Council has also embarked on a culture change programme aimed at delivering 
continuous improvement.  
 
The culture change at Fylde has been driven by the need to transform the Council from a traditional 
bureaucratic local authority to a modern efficient organisation. The Council was in a poor financial position in 
2007/8 with general reserves forecast to fall below the £500,000 recommended lowest limit with further 
pressure on reserves if the Council continued to operate in the way that it was doing. The Council has reduced 
the number of direct employees by almost 50% in the last 10 years, general fund reserves are in excess of 
£3.5 million, with a further £9.6 million currently held within earmarked reserves. 
 
Key to transforming the Council has been employee engagement that has secured ownership of change and 
improvement. Competencies were developed in consultation with employees and have been placed at the 
core of behaviour across the Council. Every process, strategy and policy has been influenced by the 
competencies in order to embed the behaviours required to transform traditional public sector attitudes that 
had been developed over many years. The approach has been underpinned by a communication strategy that 
is reviewed regularly to ensure that every possible means of informing and supporting employees to 
demonstrate the required behaviours is in place. 
 
The culture change programme has been delivered through ‘leadership from everywhere’ in the organisation, 
developing advocates through the ‘Ambassadors’ programme, mentoring, coaching, employee workshops, 
‘open door’ policy, leadership by example, management by walkabout, and team working across the 
organisation. Simple mantras have made it easy for everyone to understand how they can make a difference 
such as; ‘more from less’ and ‘treat people how you would like to treated’. These have been demonstrated 
and reinforced through the online employee newsletter, the Chief Executive’s weekly Five Points, at Team 
Briefs and Team Talks.   
 
A resident satisfaction survey is carried out each year and the results, as set out in the table below, show high 
levels of customer satisfaction with the Councils performance. 

 
 
 The Resident Survey Results 2012 to 2017 

QUESTIONS 
(Percentages 
figures are the 
percentage 
satisfied, good and 
excellent) 

2017 
 

610 
responses 

2016 
 

136 
responses 

2015 
 

461 
responses 

2014  
 

608 
responses 

2013 
 

829 
responses 

2012 
 

1,583 
responses 

Cumulative 

How would you rate 
the refuse 
collection service at 
Fylde? 

92% 92% 97% 94% 95% 93% 94% 

How would you rate 
the household 
recycling service at 
Fylde? 

86% 87% 93% 92% 93% 91% 90% 

How would you rate 
the parks and open 
spaces in Fylde? 

93% 98% 95% 94% 94% 93% 95% 

How would you rate 
the cleanliness of 
the streets in 
Fylde? 

73% 83% 85% 83% 83% 81% 81% 

How would rate you 
the planning service 
at Fylde?* 

60% 79% 69% 63% 70% 71% 69% 

How would you rate 
the customer 
service at Fylde?* 

74% 89% 89% 89% 88% 90% 87% 

Overall I would rate 
the Fylde as a place 
to visit 

95% 90% 97% 97% 97% 95%        95% 
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Overall I would rate 
Fylde as a place to 
live 

94% 99% 97% 97% 97% 95% 97% 

How would you rate 
the value for money 
you receive from 
Fylde Council? 

70% 82% 84% 85% 85% 81%    81% 

Overall and taking 
everything into 
account, how would 
rate Fylde Council? 

76% 87% 92% 90% 90% 88%     87% 

 

*Only includes percentage of the respondents that have used the service 

 
 The Corporate Plan 

 
The Council defines its key objectives through its Corporate Plan. The 2016 - 2020 Corporate Plan is in the 
form of a number of specific priorities, with linked actions, which sit within one of five policy themes. The 
Corporate priorities are: 
 

 Value for Money; 

 Clean and Green; 

 A Vibrant Economy; 

 A Great Place to Live; and 

 A Great Place to Visit. 

 
The Corporate Plan is subject to regular review to measure progress on each of the defined actions, with an 
update being provided to Members in a twice-yearly report to Council. The next update to the Council will be 
at the meeting of 16th July 2018 and the Update report is accessible on the Council website at: 
https://fylde.cmis.uk.com/fylde/Committees.aspx 

 
 

 An update on progress on each of the actions within the Corporate Plan is shown below: 
 
 

 Key to symbols 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://fylde.cmis.uk.com/fylde/Committees.aspx
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                                                  VALUE FOR MONEY 

 
CORPORATE PLAN ACTION  

 
 
 

STATUS  
Action: Produce and implement an investment strategy  

 
Update: A draft commercial strategy is in the process of being prepared and once complete it will be 
presented to members during the 2018/19 financial year. 

Action: Explore and initiate new income streams  

 
Update: During 2017/18 the Council introduced a number of new charges including: a charge for the 
collection of resident’s green garden waste; charges for estates management services including lease 
renewals; charges for the provision of wedding services at the Town hall; and charges for pre-planning 
advice. The Council will continue to explore and initiate new income streams. 

Action: Complete the accommodation project works  

 
Update: The final internal element of the Council’s accommodation project was completed in March 2018. 
The only phase remaining is the external works to the car park and grounds which are scheduled for 
completion during 2018/19. 

Action: Review the potential / function of all property assets in response to the need to 
be financially self-sustaining by 2020  

 
 

Update: The Council’s Estates and Asset Manager has made good progress in working through a backlog 
of work relating to the management of the Council’s assets. Increased income has been achieved which 
will be taken into account as part of future updates of the council’s medium term financial strategy. 

Action: Improve online services to increase efficiency, reduce transaction costs and 
generate income  
 

 

Update: The Council continues to review and improve the online offer in order to increase efficiency and 
reduce transaction costs. This work includes business process re-engineering to streamline back office 
functions and integrate systems to eradicate inefficiencies in order to deliver more for less. 

Produce a new Council Website with streamline content and integrate digital by 
preference to enable 24/7 services 

 
Update: Work is ongoing to produce a new Council website. The focus is on developing the website to 
become a transactional hub, rather than an information storage facility. Systems are being integrated to 
allow for more payments options and provide self-service functionalities in line with the corporate ‘digital 
by preference’ approach. Analysis has been done to identify customer demand to make sure the more 
popular sections are predominantly located on the website. Plans are to launch the website during 2018. 
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                                                  CLEAN AND GREEN 

 
CORPORATE PLAN ACTION  

 
 
 

STATUS 
Action: Focus resources on the reduction of seasonal litter 

 
 

Update: A number of larger litter bins have been purchased and located at known hotspots along the 
promenade area between North Prom car park and Beach Terrace Café.  This has improved the situation, 
however, there are still peak times during the hotter weather where some of the bins fill up in between 
the scheduled am and pm litter bin collection round.  There are already a large number of bins along the 
promenade and locating more bins would detract from the aesthetics of the area.  The Environment 
Agency has recently granted permission under a Waste Management License Exemption to locate secure, 
temporary storage compounds in discrete locations along the promenade. Waste management operatives 
will be employed out of hours on a casual basis as weather/events dictate to work along the promenade 
in between the scheduled litterbin collections, collecting litter from on top of and around overflowing bins 
for temporary storage in the secure compounds. These compounds will then be emptied by the litterbin 
crew on the next scheduled round, reducing the instances of overflowing litterbins.   

Action: Strive to achieve Blue Flag status for the beaches 
 

 
Update: A Blue Flag Beach Award Information Item was presented at 11th January 2018 Tourism and 
Leisure Committee meeting. After consideration of the scheme criteria and the required financial 
commitments, it was agreed that Parks & Coastal Services would prioritize their efforts towards a 
successful Blue Flag Award application for St. Annes Amenity Beach. The team are actioning the proposed 
infrastructure and interpretation improvements as advised from the original assessment, in readiness for 
future applications when bathing water results achieve the ‘excellent’ status required. The improvements 
are being funded through relevant section 106 monies. The primary actions in preparation for an 
application are improved signage, improve beach access and appropriate educational activities. All of these 
actions are on track for completion during 2018. 

Action: Produce landscape masterplan for Lytham Park Cemetery  

 
Update: A plan is currently in development for the extension of the Cemetery to the North East. When the 
engineering scheme has been finalised to store drainage water on site and the car parking and new 
roadways have been agreed, the Landscape Masterplan can be finalized. 
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                                                  A VIBRANT ECONOMY 

 
CORPORATE PLAN ACTION  

 
 
 

STATUS 
Action: Engage effectively with the Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

 
Update: During 2017/18 the Council established an Economic Prosperity Board (EPB) with Blackpool and 
Wyre Councils to discharge certain economic development functions across the Fylde coast, with the EPB 
having linkages to the Local Enterprise Partnership which aims to bring about stronger engagement going 
forward.  

Action: Progress the re-opening of the M55/ Moss Road link 
 

 
Update: Regular meetings of the project board are taking place to review progress and to maintain the 
impetus for delivery of the scheme. The design for the road is almost complete and a funding package is 
in place to meet the cost of the new road (circa £25m) with most sources confirmed. 

Action: Investigate the potential of developing the digital high street 
 

 
Update: The following actions will be taken to support the digital high street in Fylde:  
•      Provide public access Wi-Fi at Fylde customer locations – public Wi-Fi access is currently available at 

the Town Hall, Depot / MOT /Parks site and Fairhaven Lake. Plans are in place to install units at the 
Cemetery and Crematorium and work is currently ongoing with Live Nation / Indigo around Lytham 
Green and other public areas. 

•      The Council continues to offer fylde.gov.uk web estate and develop mobile application for enhanced 
service engagement, such as: QR codes; location based reporting etc. 

Action: Facilitate and support Town Centre Partnerships 
 

 
Update: The Council was instrumental in supporting town centre partnership for the three principal 
centres and has worked alongside these in the delivery of various initiatives, such as the High Street 
Innovation Fund. The Council was a founder partner at both officer and councilor level with the foundation 
of the Coastal Communities Team – The St. Annes Enterprise Partnership. It is represented on the Project 
Board and an active member is helping drive the partnership forward. The Council also supports where 
appropriate the development of local initiatives in the town centres of Lytham and Kirkham. 

Action: Channel business rates funding opportunities to economic development 

 
Update: This initiative is closely related to previous announcements that local council’s would retain all or 
a proportion of collected business rates. The scheme is being piloted in parts of the country. If and when 
the scheme is ‘rolled out’ the opportunities for the Council to utilize retained rates to further economic 
development initiatives will become clearer. In the meantime business rate growth generated within the 
existing Enterprise Zones is retained and re-invested within EZ boundaries to stimulate further economic 
development and growth. 
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                                                  A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

 
CORPORATE PLAN ACTION  

 
 
 

STATUS 
Action: Implement the timetable for the Local Plan delivery 

 
 

Update: The Examination in Public of the Fylde Local Plan to 2032 ran throughout most of 2017 with 
hearings in March, June and December. The 6 week public consultation on the proposed Main 
Modifications closed on 22 March 2018. The Council provided the Inspector with a summary of the 
responses and a complete set of responses by 6 April 2018, which were also published on the Council’s 
website. The Council is currently waiting to hear from the Inspector. It is difficult to anticipate when the 
Inspector’s Report will be received. After a period of checking it will be presented to Planning Committee. 
A final version of the Local Plan and Policies Map will be presented to Full Council for adoption.  

Action: Develop and implement a policy to protect our heritage  
 

 
Update: The Council’s Heritage Strategy has been completed and approved by The Council. It supports the 
policies of the Local Plan. Various actions contained within the Strategy are being developed including local 
listing, the Heritage Forum and conservation area reviews. The Council has to date adopted and approved 
the local listing of 115 buildings within the coastal area and is progressing with the scheme throughout the 
rural parts of the Borough. 

Action: Tackle social isolation and health inequalities with Public Health  
 

 
Update: There are well documented links between health and social inequality and social isolation.  
Although social isolation is more common in later life, it can occur at all stages.  Public Health data for 
Lancashire rates Fylde as one of the most at risk areas for social isolation (and associated health 
conditions), with the Lytham St Annes area showing the highest percentage of isolated households across 
the district.  Work is currently ongoing between Fylde Council, Lancashire County Council Public Health, 
Fylde and Wyre CCG and the local charity Just Good Friends to identify the most vulnerable groups and 
signpost them to appropriate support and services to provide care in the community and improve health 
outcomes.  

Action: Support community groups throughout the borough to maximise success in 
the regional and national ‘In Bloom’ initiative  
 

 

Update: The Parks Development team continue to work with community groups from around the whole 
Borough and recent 'Bloom' successes are encouraging additional groups to enter the competition. This 
year sees a further increase in Neighbourhood Awards e.g. Allotments, Housing Associations and 
Community Initiatives. 
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                                                  A GREAT PLACE TO VISIT 

 
CORPORATE PLAN ACTION  

 
 
 

STATUS 
Action: Improve entrance signage and welcome points 

 
Update: A corporate group of representatives across the Council has been developed to review and 
spearhead a Fylde Coast Signage Strategy. The process to develop this strategy includes a review of existing 
signage and interpretation, key destinations, features and projects as well as a review of sign classification, 
branding and design. The strategy framework and recommendations will be developed by Stuart Ryder 
Consultants in partnership with the Council. A photographic condition survey of coastal signs has now been 
completed by the Parks & Coastal Service and provided to Stuart Ryders for analysis.   

Action: Improve information in and about tourist areas  
 

 
Update: The Council has reviewed its approach to the provision of tourism information. This has included 
a new digital platform through the provision of www.discoverfylde.co.uk. In addition there is a bi-annual 
presentation to tourism businesses of upcoming events, tourism developments and continuing support. 
There has been continuing partnership agreement activity covering web, digital and PR with Marketing 
Lancashire (the county’s Destination Management Organisation) to promote all areas of Fylde. 

Action: Develop and promote rural tourism 
 

 
Update: The new tourism website www.discoverfylde.co.uk extensively promotes rural Fylde. Also a mini 
guide has been produced which covers rural tourism. Event support funding has been provided for the 
Fylde Country show at Treales along with Kirkfest in Kirkham. 

Action: Decide the most effective way to market Fylde as a holiday destination 
 

 
Update: The new tourism website has been created at www.discoverfylde.co.uk with improved imagery, 
downloadable guides and easy to use events listings. Social media channels (Facebook and Twitter) are 
being proactively managed with a continuingly growing audience. Additional partnership work is ongoing 
with Marketing Lancashire, Discover Wyre, Visit Blackpool and the business sector. 
 

Action: Maximise the natural assets of our coast and countryside by improving their 
facilities  

 
 

Update: A new Coast and Conservation team have been appointed to promote, protect and enhance 
Fylde’s ecological assets. The team includes a dedicated Coastal Patrol Officer and three Area Conservation 
Rangers. The team will work with partner organisations to deliver a wide range of environmental 
improvement projects, a regular programme of outdoor events, a national key stage linked environmental 
education programme for schools as well as borough wide volunteering programmes including Volunteer 
Rangers, Beach Wardens and Junior Rangers. The team are currently developing an annual outdoor events 
programme that will be piloted this year and rolled out fully in 2019. All town and parish councils are being 
currently consulted on the development of the programme with a view to significantly increasing the 
promotion and appreciation of Fylde’s countryside areas. 
 

Action: Work up the stage 1 development of the Fairhaven Lake Project Plan and 
submit stage 2 bid to Heritage Lottery Fund  

 
Update: Stage 2 of the Fairhaven Lake and Gardens HLF project effectively commenced with the 
appointment of an Activity Development Officer and a Fairhaven Project Officer at the beginning of August 
2017. Ryder Landscape Consultants have been selected as Lead Consultant for the scheme following a 
competitive OJEU tender process. Ryders will be the design lead of a multi-disciplinary team of consultants 
including Conservation Building Architect, Hydrologist, Interpretation and Audience Development 
consultants in addition to a number of ancillary services. Ryder will be undertaking the Landscape Design 
and have a wealth of experience in HLF projects. A project start up meeting was held on the 16 August 

http://www.discoverfylde.co.uk/
http://www.discoverfylde.co.uk/
http://www.discoverfylde.co.uk/
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2017 which proved to be a successful launch of the project including meeting with all main consultants on 
the project and an introduction to the Sea Defence project to ensure that both projects will be delivered 
in synergy. The team will now work together to prepare and submit a competent second round bid to the 
HLF in August 2018 for the capital funding. 
 

 

 
 

10. OUTLOOK FOR THE FUTURE 

  
 The favourable outturn position for revenue allows for a further contribution to be made to the Capital 

Investment Reserve in the sum of £0.560m which will provide additional financing resources for future capital 
projects. This additional contribution is beneficial Council’s overall financial position and thus is to be 
welcomed. 
 
The Council’s overall financial strength shows improvement from the position as presented to the Budget 
Council meeting in March 2017. The Financial Forecast continues to show a budgeted surplus for 2018/19, 
but with deficits from 2019/20 onwards. A significant factor in the forecast deficits from 2019/20 is the intended 
further reform of the Business Rates retention mechanism with effect from that year, which threatens the 
viability of the Lancashire Business Rate Pool, of which Fylde Council is a member and from which it derives 
significant financial benefit. In anticipation of this change the Council’s current Financial Forecast assumes 
that the pool will continue to operate for 2018/19 only and thereafter will cease to deliver the financial benefits 
to Fylde Council that existed in 2017/18 and that are anticipated for 2018/19. 
 
Additionally a forthcoming review of the spending needs of local authorities (announced by the government in 
December 2017) is widely anticipated to re-balance public funding in such a way that may be detrimental to 
district councils, although details of the review and its outcome are yet to emerge. 
 
Whilst challenges remain, and will no doubt continue to be present given the reduction in central government 
funding for future years, prudent financial management has provided a relatively stable financial environment 
which allows the necessary time to determine how this Council can best respond to the challenges it faces. 
 
As well as the challenges that are presented by the reduced levels of Central Government funding already 
announced the Council also faces a number of further risks, namely: 
 

 the risk of lower than projected income resulting from Business Rate Pooling for 2018/19; 

 reduced levels of government grant for Housing Benefit Administration; and 

 the risk that borrowing cost assumptions may require amendment in the light of changes to the 

economic environment. 

Full details of the above are shown within the MTFS as presented to the Budget Council on 5th March 2018. 
 
In preparation for the known future financial challenges the Council has, in recent years, undertaken a review 
of potential means of responding to those circumstances. Consequently a number of important decisions have 
already been made with regard to income generation and expenditure reduction that will have a positive effect 
on the financial forecast for future years, demonstrating a responsiveness to the current financial challenges 
which is essential for the Council to meet in order to continue to benefit from a robust financial position. 
 
Key amongst those decisions was the introduction of a chargeable green waste collection service with effect 
from 2017/18, in line with many other district councils. Full details of the projected financial implications of the 
introduction of this service were reported to the Operational Management Committee at various points 
throughout the consideration of the scheme and the introduction phase. An analysis of the financial 
contribution to the Council arising from the introduction of the new arrangements was reported to the 
Operational Management Committee at the meeting of 22nd May 2018. 
 
Council and Committee reports are accessible on the Council website at: 
 
https://fylde.cmis.uk.com/fylde/Committees.aspx 
 
Key decisions such as the introduction of a chargeable green waste collection service as described above 
have had the effect of going some way towards reducing the funding gap, particularly in the final years of the 

https://fylde.cmis.uk.com/fylde/Committees.aspx
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forecast, from that which previously existed. Further additional actions will be necessary in the future to 
address the remainder of the funding gap over the course of the coming years. 
 
At a strategic level, activity and resources are focused on the delivery of the key objectives of the Council as 
set out within the Councils approved Corporate Plan. Given the level of reserves that has been generated in 
recent years the budget deficits in the final years of the forecast appear to be at manageable levels. However 
in an uncertain financial environment the position can change in unexpected ways. It is important that the 
Council continues to operate in a sound and prudent manner in order to maintain a stable financial position 
and to explore further means by which the financial position can be further strengthened, whilst continuing to 
provide high quality services to residents and to deliver the priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 
 
In June 2016 the UK voted to leave the European Union, commonly referred to as ‘Brexit’. In March 2017 the 
government acted to confirm the effective date of the UK exit from the European Union to be March 2019. The 
full impact of this event remains uncertain as negotiations for a ‘post-Brexit’ environment continue. There are 
potential impacts on the following areas of the Council’s financial statements, in particular:  
 

 Asset valuations, such as those over property, may be more difficult to estimate and may be more 
volatile where the view of market participants may have changed following the referendum result.  

 Defined benefit pension valuations are inherently very sensitive to the selection of an appropriate 
discount rate. Actuarial views around discount rates and other assumptions may be impacted in the 
future by the exit of the UK from the European Union. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
In conclusion, the gap between in-year income and expenditure in the final years of the forecast will need to 
be addressed. However with balances at the current level the Council is well-placed to take further action in 
the intervening period to minimise the scale of this issue. Prudent financial management has provided a level 
of reserves which allows the necessary time to determine how this Council can best respond to these 
increased challenges. Officers and Members will be continuously monitoring all areas of concern through 
established budget setting procedures and will work to ensure that the Council’s Revenue Budget remains 
robust and sustainable. 
 
The Council has a track record of making savings as dictated by resource availability. I am therefore confident 
that the Council will continue to maintain a balanced budget position in the medium term. 
 
This is the Statement of Accounts upon which the auditor should enter his certificate and opinion, and has 
been prepared under the Local Government Finance Act 1982. 
 

 
 
 

 Signed                                                                                                                                                                
   

 
 
 
 

 P. O’Donoghue, ACMA, CGMA 
Chief Financial Officer, Section 151 Officer 
 
Date:     July 2018                                      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Fylde Council 24 Statement of Accounts 2017/18 

 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 
 
The Authority’s Responsibilities 
 
The Authority is required to:  
 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers 
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this Authority, that officer is the Chief 
Financial Officer. 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 
 Approve the Statement of Accounts. 

 
 
The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities 
 
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts (which includes 
the financial statements) in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance & Accountancy) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (‘the Code’). 
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has:  
 

 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 
 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; 
 complied with the Code; 
 kept proper accounting records which were up to date; 
 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities; 
 assessed  the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern; 
 used the going concern basis of accounting on the assumption that the functions of the Authority will 

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future; and 
 maintained such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
 

 
The Chief Financial Officer’s Certification 
 
I certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority at 31st March 
2018 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended. 
 
 

  
   

 

P. O’Donoghue, ACMA, CGMA 
Chief Financial Officer, Section 151 Officer 
 
Date:     July 2018                                      
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INTRODUCTION TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 
Introduction to the Core Financial Statements 
 
Set out below is a brief explanation of the Core Financial Statements which are presented on the following pages: 
 
 

 The Expenditure and Funding Analysis (Page 28)  
 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources 
(government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) by local authorities in comparison with those 
resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. It 
also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s Programme 
Committees. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented 
more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
 

 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (Page 29)  
 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing 
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from 
taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different 
from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 
 

 The Movement in Reserves Statement (Page 30)  
 

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the 
Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local 
taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. The Statement shows how the movements in year of the authority’s 
reserves are broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. 
The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund Balance movement in the year following 
those adjustments. 

 
 

 The Balance Sheet (Page 31)  
 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the 
authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the 
authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those 
reserves that the authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of 
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be 
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the authority is 
not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and 
losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services 
if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement 
line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 

 
 

 The Cash Flow Statement (Page 32)  
 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the authority during the reporting 
period. The statement shows how the authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying 
cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating 
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation 
and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing activities represent the 
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s 
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash 
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the authority. 
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 The Collection Fund (Page 86)  
 

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain 
a separate Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the 
collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and the Government of council tax and non-
domestic rates. 
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EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 
 

 

2016/17 (Restated) *  2017/18 
Net 

Expenditure 
Chargeable 

to the 
General 

Fund 

Adjustments  

Net 
Expenditure    

in the 
Comprehensive 

Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement 

 Net 
Expenditure 
Chargeable 

to the 
General 

Fund 

Adjustments  

Net 
Expenditure    

in the 
Comprehensive 

Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement 

 (Note 6)    (Note 6)  

£’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 £’000 £’000 
       
   Programme Committees    
       

1,859 432 2,291 Tourism and Leisure 1,686 391 2,077 
2,350 591 2,941 Operational Management 1,887 736 2,623 

449 80 529 Environment, Health and 
Housing 

546 150 696 

912 (1) 911 Planning 994 45 1,039 
2,248 867 3,115 Finance and Democracy 2,815 573 3,388 

       

7,818 1,969 9,787 Net Cost of Services  7,928 1,895 9,823 
       

(5,769) (5,773) (11,542) Other Income and Expenditure (11,071) (3,715) (14,786) 
(2,116) 2,116 - Transfer to/from Earmarked 

Reserves 
3,006 (3,006) - 

       

(67) (1,688) (1,755) (Surplus)/Deficit (137) (4,826) (4,963) 

       
       

(3,481)   Opening General Fund Balance (3,548)   
       

(67)   (Surplus)/Deficit on General Fund (137)   
       

(3,548) 
  Closing General Fund Balance 

as at 31st March 
(3,685) 

  

 
 
 
 
* Restatement of 2016/17 reported totals  

 
This statement details the adjustments that are made to the resources that are available to the Authority and 
reported internally (Funding Basis), to meet the external reporting requirements of the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement (Accounting Basis). The 2016/17 Expenditure and Funding Analysis has been 
restated to fully meet the grossing-up requirements of the 2017/18 Code. The Surplus on Provision of Services 
is not affected by these presentational changes and remains as originally reported. 
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 
 

 
 

2016/17 (Restated) *   2017/18 

Gross 
Expend

-iture 

Gross 
Income 

Net 
Expend
-iture 

  
Notes 

Gross 
Expend-

iture 

Gross 
Income 

Net 
Expend-

iture 

£’000 £’000 £’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 
        

   Programme Committees     
        

4,447 (2,156) 2,291 Tourism and Leisure  4,480 (2,403) 2,077 
7,642 (4,701) 2,941 Operational Management  7,829 (5,206) 2,623 
3,747 (3,218) 529 Environment, Health and Housing  3,748 (3,052) 696 
3,190 (2,279) 911 Planning  3,302 (2,263) 1,039 

27,323 (24,208) 3,115 Finance and Democracy  27,059 (23,671) 3,388 
        

46,349 (36,562) 9,787 Cost of Services   46,418 (36,595) 9,823 
        

863      - 863 Other Operating Expenditure 9 838      - 838 
980 (396) 584 Financing and Investment Income 

and Expenditure 
10 

808 (372) 436 

1,025 (14,014) (12,989) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 
Income and Expenditure 

11 
2,042 (18,102) (16,060) 

49,217 (50,972)   12 50,106 (55,069)  

        

  
(1,755) 

(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of 
Services 

   
(4,963) 

        
  (-) (Surplus)/Deficit on Revaluation of 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Assets 

13   19 

  (-) Impairment losses on Non-Current 
Assets charged to the 
Revaluation Reserve 

14   82 

  4,613 Re-measurement of the net defined 
benefit liability/(asset) 

41   (3,856) 

        

  
4,613 

Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

  
(3,755) 

       
       

  
2,858 

Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 

  
(8,718) 

 
 
 
* Restatement of 2016/17 reported totals  
 

Following a change to the 2016/17 Code, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement requires Local 
Authorities to report performance on the basis of how they are structured and how they operate, monitor and 
manage financial performance. Therefore, Local Authorities are no longer required to report within the format 
specified within SeRCOP. As a result of this change in presentation, both the Gross Expenditure and Gross 
Income for 2016/17 has been restated. This reflects the grossing up of certain costs that had initially been 
reported net and the statements now also show the true income for support services, which was not a 
requirement under SeRCOP. The Surplus on Provision of Services is not affected by these presentational 
changes and remains as originally reported. 
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

 

 
Note 
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     (Note 26) (Note 27)  

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

         

Current Year         

         

Balance at 31st March 2017  3,548 6,639 63 245 10,495 (5,154) 5,341 

         

Movement in Reserves during 2017/18        

         

Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

 4,963 - - - 4,963 3,755 8,718 

Adjustments between accounting 

basis and Funding under 

Regulations 

7 (1,820) - - 546 (1,274) 1,274 - 

Net Increase/(Decrease) before 

transfers to Earmarked Reserves 

 3,143 - - 546 3,689 5,029 8,718 

Transfers to/from Earmarked 

Reserves 

8 (3,006) 3,006 - - - - - 

Increase/(Decrease) in 2017/18  137 3,006 - 546 3,689 5,029 8,718 

         

Balance at 31st March 2018  3,685 9,645 63 791 14,184 (125) 14,059 

         

         

Comparative Year         

         

Movement in Reserves during 2016/17        

         

Balance at 31st March 2016  3,481 8,755 362 94 12,692 (4,493) 8,199 

         

Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 

 1,755 - - - 1,755 (4,613) (2,858) 

Adjustments between accounting 

basis and Funding under 

Regulations 

7 (3,804) - (299) 151 (3,952) 3,952 - 

Net Increase/(Decrease) before 

transfers to Earmarked Reserves 

 (2,049) - (299) 151 (2,197) (661) (2,858) 

Transfers to/from Earmarked 

Reserves 

8 2,116 (2,116) - - - - - 

Increase/(Decrease) in 2016/17  67 (2,116) (299) 151 (2,197) (661) (2,858) 

         

Balance at 31st March 2017  3,548 6,639 63 245 10,495 (5,154) 5,341 
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BALANCE SHEET 
 
 

Balance 
As at 31st 

March 2017 

 
Notes 

Balance 
As at 31st 

March 2018 

£’000   £’000 
    

19,929 Property, Plant and Equipment 13 23,518 
    

3,870 Heritage Assets 14 3,788 
    

3,030 Investment Properties 15 3,155 
    

- Intangible assets 16 - 
    

6 Long Term Debtors 18 4 
    

26,835 Long Term Assets  30,465 
    
    

10,035 Short Term Investments 17 12,026 
550 Assets held for sale 19 550 
88 Inventories 20 76 

3,701 Short Term Debtors 21 6,385 
9,759 Cash and Cash equivalents 22 2,464 

    

24,133 Current Assets  21,501 
    
    

(12) Short Term Borrowing 17 (12) 
(12,341) Short Term Creditors 23 (10,187) 
(1,969) Provisions 24 (1,463) 

(34) Provision for Accumulated Absences 27 (33) 
    

(14,356) Current Liabilities  (11,695) 
    
    
    

(1,659) Long Term Creditors 25 (1,985) 
(1,000) Long Term Borrowing 17 (1,000) 

(28,612) Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 41 (23,227) 
    

(31,271) Long Term Liabilities  (26,212) 
    
    

5,341 NET ASSETS  14,059 

    
    
    

10,495 Usable Reserves 26 14,184 
    

(5,154) Unusable Reserves 27 (125) 
    

5,341 TOTAL RESERVES  14,059 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 
 

2016/17  Notes 2017/18 

£’000   £’000 
    

    
1,755 Net Surplus / (Deficit) on the Provision of Services  4,963 

    
1,830 Adjustments for non-cash movements 28 (2,806) 

    
(479) Adjust for movements relating to investing and financing 

activities 
28 (3,987) 

    

3,106 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities  (1,830) 
    
    

(4,950) Investing Activities 29 (1,371) 
    

3,444 Financing Activities 30 (4,094) 
    

1,600 Net Increase or (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (7,295) 
    
    

8,159 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the reporting 
period 

 
9,759 

    
    

9,759 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the reporting 
period 

22 2,464 
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 

 
 

 The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code) and the accounting policies set out at Note 1. The 
notes that follow set out supplementary information to assist readers of the accounts. 
 

  

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
 

 a) General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2017/18 financial year and its 
position at the year-end of 31st March 2018. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of 
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require the accounts to 
be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2017/18 (the Code) and the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice 2017/18 (SeRCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS).  
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by 
the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 

 b) Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or 
received. In particular: 
 

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably the 
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the 
date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance 
Sheet. 

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded 
as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made. 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings are accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument 
rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a 
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be 
settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that 
might not be collected. 

 
 c) Acquisitions and Discontinued Operations 

 
Where, and if, appropriate, income and expenditure directly relating to acquisitions or discontinued 
operations is shown separately on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
under the appropriate heading. 
 

 d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on 
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no more 
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than three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management. 
 

 e) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material 
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years 
affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change 
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions 
on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the 
prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 

 f) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets  
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost 
of holding Non-Current Assets during the year: 
 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 

 Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated 
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off; 

 Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 
or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction 
in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined 
by the Authority in accordance with statutory guidance). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses 
and amortisation are therefore replaced by the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) contribution, by way 
of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement 
for the difference between the two. 
 

 g) Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) on behalf of the 
major preceptors (including Government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting Council Tax and NDR for 
themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) 
for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of Council Tax and NDR. Under the legislative 
framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central government share 
proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of Council Tax and NDR collected could be less or 
more than predicted.  
 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR 
The Council Tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is 
the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount of 
Council Tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. Therefore, the difference 
between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount 
required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of year balances in respect of Council Tax 
and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments 
and appeals. 
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 h) Employee Benefits 
 
(i) Benefits Payable During Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the year-end. They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the 
year in which employees render service to the Authority. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-
end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and 
salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the 
benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out 
through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in which 
the holiday absence occurs. 
 
(ii) Termination Benefits 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer’s 
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in 
exchange for those benefits and are charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Authority can no longer 
withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Authority recognises costs for a restructuring.  
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General 
Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in 
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in 
Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash 
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at year-end. 
 
(iii) Post-employment Benefits 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 
Lancashire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members, earned as employees 
worked for the Council.  
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 

 The liabilities of the Lancashire County Council scheme attributable to the Authority are included in 
the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the 
future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, 
based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of 
projected earnings for current employees. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a real discount rate of 2.6% (2016/17 
2.5%), based on the indicative rate of return on an AA corporate bonds. 

 The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their 
fair value. 

o Quoted securities – current bid price 
o Unquoted securities – professional estimate 
o Unitised securities – current bid price 
o Property – market value 

 The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 

Service cost comprising: 
o Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 

this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the 
services for which the employees worked. 

o Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs. 

o Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for the 
Authority – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that 
arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – this is 
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation 
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at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning 
of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

 
Re-measurements comprising: 

o The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure. 

o Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions 
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 
Contributions made to the Lancashire County Council Pension Fund: 

o cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not 
accounted for as an expense. 
 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with 
the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension 
fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance 
that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being 
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits earned by 
employees. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event 
of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are 
accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are 
applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 

 i) Events after the Reporting Period 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for 
issue. Two types of event can be identified: 
 

 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events. 

 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of 
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material 
effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.   

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts. 
 

 j) Financial Instruments  

 (i)    Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at 
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount 
of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at 
which it was originally recognised. 
 
For the borrowing that the Authority has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is 
the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 
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(ii)    Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

 Loans and Receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an 
active market.  

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are 
subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest 
for the instrument. 

 Available for Sale Assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 
determinable payments. 

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair 
value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. 
dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes 
receivable by the Authority. 
 
Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following 
principles: 
 

 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 

 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis 

 equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company valuations. 
 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is 
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-Sale Financial Assets. The 
exception is where impairment losses have been incurred – these are debited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value falls 
below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the asset has fixed 
or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value 
against the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the 
Available-for-Sale Reserve. 
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment 
losses). 

 
 k) Foreign Currency Translation 

Where the authority has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction is 
converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective. Where 
amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange 
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rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

 
 l) Government Grants and Contributions  

 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions 
and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that: 
 

 The Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 The grants or contributions will be received 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are 
stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset in the 
form of the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future 
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in 
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the 
relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant 
Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has 
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where 
it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund 
capital expenditure. 
 

 m) Heritage Assets 
 
Heritage assets are defined as assets which have historical, artistic or cultural qualities and that are held 
and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture. 
 
The introduction of FRS 30 and subsequently FRS 102 Heritage Assets has resulted in the requirement 
for this standard to be included within the council’s accounting policies from 2011/12. Prior to 2011/12 the 
Code did not require heritage assets to be reported separately. These will have previously been reported 
as part of Community Assets in the balance sheet. 
 
There is no IFRS that deals with tangible heritage assets. Authorities are therefore required to account for 
tangible heritage assets in accordance with FRS 102.  
 
Accounting for Heritage Assets in 2017/18 
 
Heritage assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses) in 
accordance with the Authority’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of 
the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed below. The accounting policies 
in relation to heritage assets are presented below. 
 
Heritage assets should normally be included in the balance sheet at their current value. Where it is not 
practical to obtain a valuation at a reasonable cost heritage assets should be valued at cost. 
 
Where the Council has information on the cost or value of a heritage asset that value has been used in 
compilation of the 2017/18 balance sheet. Where this information is not available and the historical cost 
information cannot easily be obtained the asset can be excluded from the balance sheet. 
 
Valuations may be made by any method that is appropriate. There is no requirement for valuations to be 
carried out or certified by external valuers nor is there any prescribed minimum period between valuations. 
However where heritage assets are valued at their current value that value has to be reviewed with 
sufficient frequency to ensure the valuation is up to date. 
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Depreciation is not required on heritage assets with indefinite lives. However where there is evidence of 
physical deterioration to a heritage asset or doubts arise to its authenticity the value of the asset has to be 
reviewed. 
 
The Authority’s collections of heritage assets are as follows. 
 

 Art Collection  
o The art collection comprises approximately 200 paintings of a wide range of subjects most of 

which have been donated or bequeathed to the Council and a number of which are by local artists 
and depict scenes from around the local area. Prominent amongst the collection is a painting by 
Johann Heinrich Fuseli, R.A. entitled ‘Vision of Catherine of Aragon’. This work is of significant 
merit and is periodically loaned to public galleries in order that it may be widely viewed. 

 
o The valuation will be regularly reviewed with a professional revaluation of the collection being 

obtained at intervals of not more than 5 years. A professional valuation was obtained during 
2017/18.  

 
o Public access to the collection is afforded by exhibition in a local gallery space and the loan of the 

more significant components to local, national and international galleries.  
 

o Donations are recognised at valuation with valuations provided by the external valuers.  

 

 Memorials  & Monuments 
o The Council owns a range of memorials and monuments situated within the borough including a 

number of war memorials. 
 

o The Authority does not consider that reliable cost or valuation information can be obtained for all 
except one of the items within this category of heritage assets. This is because of the unique 
nature of the assets held and lack of comparable market values. Consequently the Authority 
recognises these assets on the balance sheet at a nominal value. The single item for which a 
value in included in the balance sheet is a memorial sculpture which is valued for insurance 
purposes in the sum of £80,000, the estimated replacement cost. This insurance valuation will be 
regularly reviewed and the value updated as necessary. 

 
o The Authority does not intend to extend the range of this class of assets. 

 
o Public access is afforded by the location of the items in prominent and accessible locations within 

the borough. 
 

 Sculptures / Ivories 
o The Council owns a range of sculptures including a collection of Japanese ivory figurines all of 

which have been donated or bequeathed. 
 

o These valuations will be regularly reviewed with a professional revaluation of the collection being 
obtained at intervals of not more than 5 years. A professional valuation was obtained during 
2017/18.  

 
o Public access to the collection is afforded by exhibition in a local gallery space and loan of the 

more significant components to local galleries upon request.  
 

o Donations are recognised at valuation with valuations provided by the external valuers.  
 

 Trophies & Other Items 
o The Council owns a number of trophies of a sporting heritage and other miscellaneous items of a 

ceremonial nature. 
 

o These valuations will be regularly reviewed with a professional revaluation of the collection being 
obtained at intervals of not more than 5 years. A professional valuation was obtained during 
2017/18.  

 
o Public access to these items is limited to the display of the items at civic events. 
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 Civic Regalia 
o The Council owns a variety of chains, pendants and badges which together with the ceremonial 

mace comprise the civic regalia.  
o These valuations will be regularly reviewed with a professional revaluation of the collection being 

obtained at intervals of not more than 5 years. A professional valuation was obtained during 
2017/18.  

  
o Public access to these items is limited to the display of the items at civic events and occasionally 

as components of an exhibition. 
 
Heritage Assets – General 
 
The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment for heritage 
assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its 
authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Authority’s general 
policies on impairment – see accounting policy on page 44.  
 

 n) Intangible Assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
Authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future 
economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically feasible 
and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the Authority will be able 
to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. 
Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted 
to that incurred during the development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised). 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily intended 
to promote or advertise the Authority’s goods or services. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the 
assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible 
asset held by the Authority meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The 
depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there 
is an indication that the asset might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service 
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal 
or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the 
General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 

 o) Interests in Companies and Other Entities 

 

The Authority has no material interests in companies and other entities that have the nature of subsidiaries, 

associates and jointly controlled entities that require it to prepare group accounts.  

 
 p) Inventories and Long Term Contracts 

 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of 
inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula. 
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year. 
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 q) Investment Property 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The 
definition is not met if the property is used for the delivery of the Council’s services or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount 
at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Properties are not 
depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses 
on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses 
on disposal.  
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income 
line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses 
are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains 
and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) 
the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
 

 r) Joint Operations 
 
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights 
to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. The activities undertaken by the 
authority in conjunction with other joint operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint 
operators. In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the authority as a joint operator recognises: 
 

 its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly 

 its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly 

 its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation 

 its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation 

 its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 
 

 s) Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately 
for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for 
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use 
of specific assets. 
 
The Authority as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay 
the lessor. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. 
 
Operating Leases 
Rentals paid under operating leases are treated as revenue transactions and are charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of 
the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments. 
 

 t) Overheads and Support Services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance with the 
authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 
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 u) Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, 
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one 
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
(i) Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised 
on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the Authority; that the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and 
that the cost exceeds the ‘de minimis’ threshold of £10,000. Expenditure that maintains but does not add 
to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) 
is charged as an expense when it is incurred. 
 
(ii) Measurement 
 
Non-Current Assets are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance & Accountancy) and in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Principles and 
Guidance Notes issued by the RICS (The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors).  Non-Current Assets 
are classified into the groupings required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. 
 
All valuations have been undertaken in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 
(RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Standards by our in house surveyor. The values have been arrived at by 
having regard to market evidence and the Surveyor’s knowledge and experience of the properties 
involved. 
 
Definitions of each of the valuation methodologies used are: 
 

Market Value - “The estimated amount for which an asset should exchange on the date of 
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper 
marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without 
compulsion”. 
 
Depreciated Replacement Cost - “The current cost of replacing an asset with its modern 
equivalent asset less deductions for the physical deterioration and all relevant forms of 
obsolescence and optimisation.” 
 
Existing Use Value - “The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the 
date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction, 
after proper marketing wherein the parties had acted knowledgeably, prudently and without 
compulsion, assuming that the buyer is granted vacant possession of all parts of the property 
required by the business and disregarding potential alternative uses and any other 
characteristics of the property that would cause its Market Value to differ from that needed to 
replace the remaining service potential at least cost”. 

 
Operational properties have been valued on the basis of Existing Use Value, unless they are Specialised, 
in which case they have been valued on the basis of Depreciated Replacement Cost. All Depreciated 
Replacement Cost valuations are subject to the prospect and viability of the continued occupation and use 
of the properties concerned. 
 
Non-operational properties have been valued on the basis of Market Value. In the case of the 
Community assets they have been valued on either Existing Use Value or Market Value. 
 
Heritage Assets  
Valuation methodologies in respect of heritage assets are outlined in note m on Heritage Assets above. 
 
Revaluations of Non-Current Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are planned at intervals 
of not more than five years. Investment properties are reviewed every year to consider that the value of 
the assets are fairly reflected in the Balance Sheet. In addition material changes in asset values are 
recorded as they occur.   
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(iii) Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material the recoverable amount 
of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss 
is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains) 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted 
for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
(iv)    Depreciation    
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment with a finite useful life. Useful life is 
estimated at the time of acquisition or revaluation. An exception is made for assets without a determinable 
finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for 
use (i.e. assets under construction). 
 
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases: 
 

 dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as 
estimated by the valuer 

 vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset 

 infrastructure – straight-line allocation as advised by a suitable qualified officer 
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in 
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Newly acquired assets are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition, although assets in the course of 
construction are not depreciated until they are brought into use, thereafter an equal charge to revenue is 
made over the useful life of all assets. 
 
Depreciation is not required on heritage assets with indefinite lives. However where there is evidence of 
physical deterioration to a heritage asset or doubts arise to its authenticity the value of the asset has to be 
reviewed. 
 
(v)    Componentisation    
 
The Code requires that each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. The Council will use the value of an 
individual asset relative to the overall asset portfolio to assess whether an asset is material.   Any building 
element below 1% of the value of the portfolio is not therefore viewed as material. In terms of significance, 
the CIPFA advice is that they are not looking for more than 3 to 4 components in addition to the “host” 
asset. The Council will therefore adopt a de minimis cost equating to 20% of the asset value. 
 
(vi)    Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a 
sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.  
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Assets Held for Sale, are where the: 
 

 Asset is immediately available for sale 

 Sale is highly probable 

 Asset is actively marketed 

 Sale is expected to be completed within 12 months 
 
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and 
fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss 
is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in 
the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for 
sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not 
been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet 
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value 
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation 
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of 
receipts relating to housing disposals (75% for dwellings, 50% for land and other assets, net of statutory 
deductions and allowances) is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts is required to be 
credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment [or set 
aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement)]. Receipts 
are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is 
fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the 
Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

 v) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year that the authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured 
at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking 
into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. 
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than 
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated 
is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another 
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually 
certain that reimbursement will be received if the authority settles the obligation. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible obligation 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision 
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would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible asset whose 
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the authority. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where 
it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 

 w) Reserves 
 
The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. 
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance. When expenditure to 
be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net 
charge against council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority – 
these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 
The Council operates a number of different reserves, the purpose of each is laid out in note 8 on pages 
54 to 55. 
 

 x) Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under Statute  
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not 
result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has determined to 
meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then 
reverses out the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.  
 

 y) Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to that the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 

 z) Fair Value Measurement 
 
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and investment properties, 
and some of its financial instruments, such as equity share holdings, at fair value at each reporting date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
 

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability (assuming those market participants were acting in their 
economic best interest). When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into 
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
The Council uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use of relevant 
known data and minimising the use of estimates or unknowns. This takes into account the three levels of 
categories for inputs to valuations for fair value assets: 
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 Level 1 – inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 
can access at the measurement date. A quoted market price in an active market provides the 
most reliable evidence of fair value and is used without adjustment to measure fair value whenever 
available, with limited exceptions. If an entity holds a position in a single asset or liability and the 
asset or liability is traded in an active market, the fair value of the asset or liability is measured 
within Level 1 as the product of the quoted price for the individual asset or liability and the quantity 
held by the entity, even if the market's normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the 
quantity held and placing orders to sell the position in a single transaction might affect the quoted 
price.  

 

 Level 2 – inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include: 

 

- quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 
- quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, 
- inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, for example,  
- interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, 
- implied volatilities, 
- credit spreads, 
- inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by 

correlation or other means ('market-corroborated inputs'). 
 

 Level 3 –inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs are used to 
measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing 
for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the 
measurement date. An entity develops unobservable inputs using the best information available 
in the circumstances, which might include the entity's own data, taking into account all information 
about market participant assumptions that is reasonably available.  

 
 

2 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT HAVE BEEN ISSUED BUT HAVE NOT YET BEEN ADOPTED 

  
 The Codes of Practice on Local Council Accounting in the United Kingdom for 2017/18 and 2018/19 have 

introduced several changes in accounting policies which will be required from 1st April 2018. If these had 
been adopted retrospectively for the financial year 2017/18 there would be no material changes within the 
financial statements. 
 
The additional disclosures that require consideration for the 2017/18 financial statements in respect of 
accounting changes that are introduced in the 2018/19 Code relate to: 
 

a) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
b) IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (including amendments to IFRS 15 

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers) 
c) amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised 

Losses 
d) amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative. 
 

Not all of the above are relevant to Fylde Council and it is anticipated that the amendments will not have 
a material impact on the information provided in the financial statements.  
 

 

3 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

  
 In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1 (pages 35 to 48), the Authority has had to make certain 

judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future event. The critical 
judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: 
 

 The Authority continues to face significant financial uncertainty in future years and in turn the Authority 
has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the 
Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service 
provision. 
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4 
ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY 

  
 The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the 

Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical 
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined 
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates. 
 
There are three items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet for which there is a significant risk of material 
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year, namely the liability related to the defined benefit Pension 
Scheme, the future of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool and the provision for NNDR Appeals. 
 
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgments relating to the 
discount rate used, the rate at which salaries and pensions are projected to increase, changes in retirement 
ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is 
engaged to provide the Authority with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.  
 
The effects on the net pensions liability of changes in individual assumptions can be measured. For 
instance, a 0.1% per annum increase in the discount rate assumption would result in a decrease in the 
pension liability of £1.417m (2016/17 £1.442m). Also, a one year addition to the members’ life expectancy 
would result in an increase in the pension liability of £1.767m (2016/17 £1.799m). 
 
The Council joined the Lancashire Business Rate Pool with effect from 1st April 2017 in order to benefit 
from a higher level of retained Business Rates. However the government has announced its intention to 
further reform the Business Rate Retention arrangements with effect from 2019/20, one of the effects 
being to bring into question the viability of local Business Rate pools. Consequently the new arrangements 
may result in changes to the amounts of Business Rate income that is retained by Fylde Council which 
are, as yet however, unquantifiable. Consequently the Council’s Financial Forecast assumes that the 
Lancashire Business Rates Pool will cease to operate after 2018/19. Each future update to the Financial 
Forecast will include the effects of any changes to this assumption as and when they are known 
 
With regards NNDR Appeals, as a consequence of the revised arrangements in respect of business rates, 
which came into effect from 2013/14, local authorities became liable for a share of the cost of the 
settlement of appeals in respect of the valuation of properties by Valuation Office Agency (VOA), that being 
the body which determines business rates liability. For 2017/18 the total value of the Provision for Appeals 
has been reduced to £3.656m from £4.922m in 2016/17 with Fylde Council’s share of this being £1.463m 
(2016/17 £1.969m).The reduction reflects the settlement of a number of claims during 2017/18. It is 
anticipated that this revised level of provision is sufficient to meet the full cost of the outstanding appeals 
currently lodged. If the cost of appeals from 2018/19 onwards is less than the amounts set-aside in the 
provision for this purpose it may be possible to release further sums from the Provision for Appeals and 
consequently the Council’s business rates income in that year would increase accordingly. This judgement 
is based upon information held on outstanding appeals and after having taken specialist advice. 
 

 

5 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

  
 The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Chief Financial Officer on 31st May 2018. 

Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events 
taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31st March 2018, the figures 
in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of 
this information. 
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6 NOTE TO THE EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS 

  

 Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2017/18: 
 

 Adjustments from General Fund to 
arrive at the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 
amounts 

Adjustments 
for Capital 
Purposes 

Net Change 
for the 

Pensions 
Adjustments 

Other 
Differences 

Total 
Adjustments 

  (Note 6a) (Note 6b) (Note 6c)  

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 Programme Committees     

 Tourism and Leisure 345 47 (1) 391 
 Operational Management 614 119 3 736 
 Environment, Health and Housing 97 53 - 150 
 Planning 6 42 (3) 45 
 Finance and Democracy 503 70 - 573 

 Net Cost of Services 1,565 331 (1) 1,895 
      
 Other Income and Expenditure from 

the Expenditure and Funding 
Analysis 

(5,530) 687 1,128 (3,715) 

      

 Difference between General Fund 
surplus/deficit and Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 
Services (Note 7) 

(3,965) 1,018 1,127 (1,820) 

 
 

 Comparatives for 2016/17: 
 

 Adjustments from General Fund to 
arrive at the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement 
amounts 

Adjustments 
for Capital 
Purposes 

Net Change 
for the 

Pensions 
Adjustments 

Other 
Differences 

Total 
Adjustments 

  (Note 6a) (Note 6b) (Note 6c)  

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 Programme Committees     

 Tourism and Leisure 450 (19) 1 432 
 Operational Management 640 (45) (4) 591 
 Environment, Health and Housing 96 (17) 1 80 
 Planning 14 (16) 1 (1) 
 Finance and Democracy 890 (26) 3 867 

 Net Cost of Services 2,090 (123) 2 1,969 
      
 Other Income and Expenditure from 

the Expenditure and Funding 
Analysis 

(3,035) 817 (3,555) (5,773) 

      

 Difference between General Fund 
surplus/deficit and Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement 
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of 
Services (Note 7) 

(945) 694 (3,553) (3,804) 
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 6a) Adjustments for Capital Purposes 

Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation 
gains and losses in the services line, and for:  

 

 Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal 
of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.  
 

 Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing 
i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and other revenue contributions are deducted from other 
income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting 
practices.  

 

 Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income 
not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from 
those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions or for which conditions were 
satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure line 
is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions 
were satisfied in the year.  

 
6b) Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments  

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
pension related expenditure and income:  

 

 For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the 
authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service 
costs.  

 

 For Financing and investment income and expenditure – the net interest on the defined benefit 
liability is charged to the CIES.  

 
6c) Other Differences  

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:  
 

 For Financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises 
adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts.  

 

 The charge under Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure represents the 
difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and NDR that 
was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under generally 
accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be 
brought forward in future surpluses or deficits on the Collection Fund.  

  
 

7 ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS 

  
 This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the 
resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital 
and revenue expenditure. 
 
The following sets out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against: 
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General Fund Balance 
The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an Authority are required to be paid 
and out of which all liabilities of the Authority are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might 
provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments should 
impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting 
practice. The General Fund Balance therefore summarises the resources that the Council is statutorily 
empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the Council 
is required to recover) at the end of the financial year. 
 
Capital Receipts Reserve 
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which are 
restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set aside to 
finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that have yet to be 
applied for these purposes at the year-end. 
 
Capital Grants Unapplied 
The Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards capital projects 
for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require repayment of the monies but 
which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital 
expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take place. 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 

 Adjustments to the Revenue Resources    

 Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different 
from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory 
requirements: 

   

  Pension costs (transferred to/(from) the Pensions Reserve) 1,018 - - 

  Council Tax and NDR (transfers to/(from) Collection Fund) 1,128 - - 

  Holiday Pay (transfers to/(from) Accumulated Absences 
Reserve) 

(1) - - 

  Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these 
items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

(2,644) 199 3,987 

 Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (499) 199 3,987 

     

 Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources    

 Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals (funded by a 
contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve) 

         - - - 

 Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the 
Capital Adjustment Account) 

(672) - - 

 Capital Expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer from 
the Capital Adjustment Account) 

(649) - - 

 Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources (1,321) - - 

     

 Adjustments to Capital Resources    

 Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure - (199) - 
 Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure - - (3,441) 

   Total Adjustments to Capital Resources - (199) (3,441) 

     

 Total Adjustments  (1,820) - 546 
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 Comparatives for 2016/17:     
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 

 Adjustments to the Revenue Resources    

 Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are different 
from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory 
requirements: 

   

  Pension costs (transferred to/(from) the Pensions Reserve) 694 - - 

  Council Tax and NDR (transfers to/(from) Collection Fund) (3,555) - - 

  Holiday Pay (transfers to/(from) Accumulated Absences 
Reserve) 

2 - - 

  Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the 
Provision of Services in relation to capital expenditure (these 
items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

1,517 - 479 

 Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (1,342) - 479 

     
     

 Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources    

 Administrative costs of non-current asset disposals (funded by a 
contribution from the Capital Receipts Reserve) 

         - - - 

 Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the 
Capital Adjustment Account) 

(672) - - 

 Capital Expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer from 
the Capital Adjustment Account) 

(1,790) - - 

 Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources (2,462) - - 

     

 Adjustments to Capital Resources    

 Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure - (299) - 
 Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure - - (328) 

   Total Adjustments to Capital Resources - (299) (328) 

     

 Total Adjustments  (3,804) (299) 151 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Fylde Council 54 Statement of Accounts 2017/18 

 

8 MOVEMENTS IN EARMARKED RESERVES 

  
 This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund in earmarked reserves to provide financing 

for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund 
expenditure in 2017/18. 

 

  

Balance 
at 1st 
April 
2016 

Transfer 
In 

2016/17 

Transfer 
Out 

2016/17 

Balance 
at 31st 
March 
2017 

Transfer 
In 

2017/18 

Transfer 
Out 

2017/18 

Balance 
at 31st 
March 
2018 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Name of Reserve        

 IT Reserve 90 - - 90 - (50) 40 

 Vehicle Maintenance  
Reserve 

127 - (127) - - - - 

 Performance Reward 
Grant Reserve 

38 - - 38 - - 38 

 Vehicle Replacement 
Financing Reserve 

212 - (212) - - - - 

 Land Charges New 
Burdens Reserve 

46 - (46) - - - - 

 MMI Insurance 
Reserve 

81 - - 81 - (1) 80 

 Capital Investment 
Reserve 

2,079 - (756) 1,323 2,022 (125) 3,220 

 Community Right to 
Bid/Challenge 
Reserve 

46 - - 46 - - 46 

 Collection Fund 
Deficit Reserve 

2,115 387 (2,121) 381 - (381) - 

 Funding Volatility 
Reserve 

3,221 - - 3,221 2,000 - 5,221 

 Accommodation 
Project Reserve 

504 973 (977) 500 - (500) - 

 M55 Link Road 
Reserve 

196 763 - 959 41 - 1,000 

 
Total Earmarked 
Reserves 

8,755 2,123 (4,239) 6,639 4,063 (1,057) 9,645 

 
 
 Purpose of Earmarked Reserves 

 
Reserves are those sums set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions. Reserves 
include earmarked reserves set aside for specific policy purposes and balances which represent resources 
set aside for purposes such as general contingencies and cash flow management.  
 
The Council operates a number of different earmarked reserves, the purpose of each is summarised 
below:- 

  
  IT Reserve (formerly Replacement Systems Reserve) – This is a voluntary set-aside established 

for the funding of new IT initiatives and the development of IT systems.  
 

  Vehicle Maintenance Reserve – This is a voluntary set-aside established in 2008/09 to contribute 
towards the cost of vehicle maintenance repairs.   

 
  Performance Reward Grant Reserve – Created in 2009/10, this is a voluntary set-aside of 

performance reward grant (PRG). Although Fylde Borough Council is the Accountable Body for the 
Fylde PRG, the Fylde Local Strategic Partnership are the appointed decision making body in relation 
to the allocation of the PRG. 
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  Vehicle Replacement Financing Reserve – Created in 2010/11, this is a voluntary set-aside 
established to meet the cost of future debt repayments in respect of the replacement and purchase 
of vehicles. 

 
  Land Charges New Burdens Reserve – Created in 2010/11, this is a voluntary set-aside towards 

potential third party claims in relation to historic Land Charge enquiries. 
 

  MMI Insurance Reserve – Created in 2011/12, this is a voluntary set-aside to cover the Council’s 
maximum exposure in relation to the potential clawback of previously paid claims under the scheme 
of arrangement with the Council’s previous Insurer, Municipal Mutual Insurance. 

 
  Capital Investment Reserve – Created in 2012/13, this is a voluntary set-aside of funds to help 

finance future capital expenditure.   
 

  Community Right to Bid/Challenge Reserve – Created in 2012/13, this is a voluntary set-aside of 
funds to finance expenditure linked to the award of Community Right to Bid and Community Right to 
Challenge grant received by the Council during 2012/13, 2013/14 and 2014/15.   

 
  Collection Fund Deficit Reserve – Created in 2013/14, this is a voluntary set-aside of funds to meet 

the Council’s share of any collection fund deficit or levy payments in respect of Business Rates.  
 

  Funding Volatility Reserve – Created in 2013/14, this is a voluntary set-aside established to provide 
a degree of protection to the Council’s finances against future volatility in central government funding 
allocations. 

 
  Accommodation Project Reserve – Created in 2015/16, this is a voluntary set-aside of funds to 

finance expenditure linked to the Accommodation Project capital scheme.  
 

  M55 Link Road Reserve – Created in 2016/17, this is a voluntary set-aside of funds to finance a 
contribution towards to the construction of a link road between the M55 and St Annes together with 
a number of public and private sector partners. 
 

 

9 OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Parish Council Precepts 852 910 
 IAS19 Administration Expenses 24 25 
 (Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current assets (13) (97) 

 Total 863 838 

 
 

10 FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Interest payable and similar charges 49 39 
 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 793 662 
 Interest Receivable and similar Income (92) (74) 
 Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties and 

changes in their fair values (see note 15) 
(166) (191) 

 Total 584 436 
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11 TAXATION AND NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Council Tax Income (6,378) (6,620) 
 Non-Domestic Rates income and expenditure (2,805) (2,274) 
 Non-Ringfenced Government Grants (see Note 36) (3,327) (3,179) 
 Capital Grants and Contributions (479) (3,987) 

 Total (12,989) (16,060) 

 
 

12 EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE 

    
 The authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

  2016/17 2017/18 

 Expenditure/Income £’000 £’000 
 Expenditure:   
 Employee benefits expenses 8,904 9,462 
 Other services expenses 27,380 26,919 
 Support service recharges 8,923 9,382 
 Depreciation, amortisation, impairment 3,122 3,491 
 Interest payments 49 39 
 Precepts and levies 852 910 
 Gain on the disposal of assets (13) (97) 
    

 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 49,217 50,106 

    
 Income:   
 Fees, charges and other service income (8,959) (8,696) 
 Support service recharges (8,923) (9,382) 
 Interest and investment income (93) (74) 
 Income from Council Tax, Non-Domestic Rates etc. (9,182) (9,975) 
 Grants and contributions (23,815) (26,942) 
    

 TOTAL INCOME (50,972) (55,069) 

    

 (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT ON THE PROVISION OF SERVICES (1,755) (4,963) 
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

    
 Movements on Balances   

 

 

2017/18 

 O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 

a
n

d
 B

u
il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 

P
la

n
t 

&
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

In
fr

a
-

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 Cost or Valuation  
 at 1st April 2017 15,216 8,513 5,452 - -   29,181 
 Additions        500 1,297 459 - 3,002 5,258 
 Revaluations  (113) - - - - (113) 
 Derecognition - disposals - - (89) - - (89) 
 Other movements in cost or valuation - - - - - - 

 At 31st March 2018 15,603 9,810 5,822 - 3,002   34,237 

        
 Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment                     
 at 1st April 2017 (2,568) (6,228) (456) - - (9,252) 
 Depreciation Charge (352) (776) - - - (1,128) 
 Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve 
94 - - - - 94 

 Derecognition - disposals - - - - - - 
 Impairment (losses) / reversals (433) - - - - (433) 

 At 31st March 2018 (3,259) (7,004) (456) - - (10,719) 

        

 Net Book Value of Assets       
 At 31st March 2018 12,344 2,806 5,366 - 3,002 23,518 
        
 At 31st March 2017 12,648 2,285 4,996 - - 19,929 

 

 

Comparatives for 2016/17 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 Cost or Valuation  
 at 1st April 2016 13,896 7,919 5,143 - -   26,958 
 Additions     1,384 594 309 - - 2,287 
 Revaluations  (66) - - - - (66) 
 Derecognition - disposals - - - - - - 
 Other movements in cost or valuation 2 - - - - 2 

 At 31st March 2017 15,216 8,513 5,452 - -   29,181 

        
 Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment                     
 at 1st April 2016 (1,620) (5,456) (456) - - (7,532) 
 Depreciation Charge (354) (772) - - - (1,126) 
 Depreciation written out to the 

Revaluation Reserve 
66 - - - - 66 

 Derecognition - disposals - - - - - - 
 Impairment (losses) / reversals (660) - - - - (660) 

 At 31st March 2017 (2,568) (6,228) (456) - - (9,252) 

        

 Net Book Value of Assets       
 At 31st March 2017 12,648 2,285 4,996 - - 19,929 
        
 At 31st March 2016 12,276 2,463 4,687 - - 19,426 
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 Depreciation Methodologies  

 
Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis on all fixed and intangible assets with a finite useful life.  
Newly acquired assets are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition in line with the SORP. 
 
Depreciation is not required on heritage assets with indefinite lives. However where there is evidence of 
physical deterioration to a heritage asset or doubts arise to its authenticity the value of the asset has to be 
reviewed. 
 
There has been no change during the period in either the estimate of useful lives or the estimate of any 
residual values. 

 
 
 Assets Under Construction 

 
This relates to the Coast Protection Scheme at Fairhaven and Church Scar. 
 
 
Capital Commitments 
 
Capital projects often take several years to complete. This means that the Authority is often committed to 
capital expenditure in later years arising from contracts entered into at the balance sheet date whereby all 
or part of the capital work has yet to be undertaken. The estimated value of capital expenditure committed 
at 31st March 2018 to be paid from 2018/19 onwards is £14.525m, and relates to the Coast Protection 
Scheme (2017/18 £nil). 

 
 
 Revaluations 

 
The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required 
to be measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. All valuations were carried out internally. 
Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for 
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations 
of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment are based on depreciated historic cost. The following statement 
shows the progress of the Authority’s rolling programme for the revaluation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment including additions and disposals. 
 
Valuation methodologies in respect of heritage assets are outlined in note m of the Accounting Policies 
section of these accounts. 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 Carried at Historical Cost 10,425 3,019 4,423 - - 17,867 
        
 Valued at fair value as at:       
 31st March 2018 (304) 521 370 - 3,002 3,589 
 31st March 2017 372 (178) 309 - - 503 
 31st March 2016 942 306 22 - - 1,270 
 31st March 2015 (1) (456) 81 - - (376) 
 31st March 2014 910 (406) 161 - - 665 

 Total Cost or Valuation 12,344 2,806 5,366 - 3,002 23,518 
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14 HERITAGE ASSETS 

    
 Reconciliation of the Carrying Value of Heritage Assets held by the Authority: 
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  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Cost or Valuation        
 at 1st April 2016 3,226 80 136 52 376 3,870 
 Additions - - - - - - 
 Revaluations - - - - - - 
 Impairment losses / (reversals) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

- - - - - - 

 Net Book Value of Assets at  
31st March 2017 

3,226 80 136 52 376 3,870 

 
 Cost or Valuation        
 at 1st April 2017 3,226 80 136 52 376 3,870 
 Additions - - - - - - 
 Revaluations (154) - 52 21 (1) (82) 
 Impairment losses / (reversals) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

- - - - - - 

 Net Book Value of Assets at  
31st March 2018 

3,072 80 188 73 375 3,788 

 
 Information on the Council’s collection of heritage assets and the accounting policies adopted in respect 

of heritage assets is shown in note m of the Accounting Policies section of the Statement of Accounts. 
 
 

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

    
 The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment 

Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 
 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
    
 Rental Income from Investment Property (304) (298) 
 Direct operating expenses arising from investment 219 232 

  (85) (66) 
    
 Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties (81) (125) 
    

 Net (Gain) / Loss (166) (191) 

    
    
 There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property 

or on the Authority’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Authority has no 
contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or repairs, maintenance or 
enhancement. 
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 The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year. 
 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance at start of year 2,962 3,030 
 Net gains /(losses) from fair value adjustments 70 125 
 Reclassification of Assets (2) - 

 Balance at end of year 3,030 3,155 

 
 Fair Value Hierarchy 

All the Council’s investment property portfolio has been assessed as Level 3 for valuation purposes (see 
pages 47 and 48 for explanation of fair value levels). 
 
Transfers between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy 
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year. 
 
Valuation Techniques used to determine Level 3 Fair Values for Investment Properties 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs are used to measure 
fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in 
which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. An entity 
develops unobservable inputs using the best information available in the circumstances, which includes 
the entity's own data, taking into account all information about market participant assumptions that is 
reasonably available.  
 
Changes in the Valuation Technique 
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 
 
Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties 
In estimating the fair value of the Authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the 
properties is deemed to be their current use. 
 
Valuer 
The investment property portfolio has been valued at 31st March 2018 in accordance with the 
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution for 
Chartered Surveyors. The assets were valued by the Council’s Estates and Asset Manager who is a 
registered valuer and has appropriate experience and expertise in this type of valuation work.  

 
 

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

    
 Intangible assets comprise the software licences for the main Authority systems, and other new e-

government systems. The policy adopted is to depreciate over a 3 to 5 year useful life. 
 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance at start of year   
  Gross carrying amounts 547 547 
  Accumulated amortisation (542) (542) 

 Net carrying amount at 1st April 5 5 
    
 Additions:   
  Amortisation for the period (5) (5) 

 Net carrying amount at 31st March - - 

    
 Comprising:   
  Gross carrying amounts 547 547 

  Accumulated amortisation (547) (547) 

  - - 
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

    
 Categories of Financial Instruments 

 
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet: 
 

  Long Term Current 

  31/03/17 31/03/18 31/03/17 31/03/18 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Financial Assets     
      
 Investments     
 Loans and Receivables - Principal - - 10,000          12,000 
 Loans and Receivables – Accrued Interest - - 35 26 
 Total Investments - - 10,035 12,026 

      
 Cash and Cash Equivalents     
 Loans and Receivables – Cash (Including 

bank accounts) 
- - 7,757 2,463 

 Loans and Receivables – Cash equivalents 
at amortised cost 

- - 2,000 - 

 Available-for-sale Investments – Cash 
equivalents at fair value 

- - - - 

 Accrued Interest - - 2 1 

 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 9,759 2,464 

      

 Debtors     
 Loans and Receivables * 6 4 571 535 

 Total included in Debtors 6 4 571 535 

 
 
 Financial Liabilities     
      
 Borrowing     
 Financial Liabilities at amortised cost - 

Loans (Principal sum borrowed) 
(1,000) (1,000) - - 

 Financial Liabilities at amortised cost - 
Loans (Accrued Interest) 

- - (12) (12) 

 Total Borrowing (1,000) (1,000) (12) (12) 

      
 Creditors     
 Financial liabilities at amortised cost ** (1,660) (1,985) (4,193) (5,984) 
 Total Creditors (1,660) (1,985) (4,193) (5,984) 

 
 
 * The Debtors line in the Balance Sheet include £5.850m short-term debtors that do not meet the definition 

of a financial asset (2016/17, £3.130m). 
 ** The Creditor line on the Balance Sheet includes £4.203m short-term creditors that do not meet the 

definition of financial liability (2016/17, £8.148m). 
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 Income, Expense, Gains and Losses   
 

  2017/18 

  Financial 
Liabilities 

Financial Assets 

  

Liabilities 
measured 

at 
amortised 

cost 

Loans and 
Receivables 

Available 
for Sale 
assets 

Fair Value 
through 

Income & 
Expenditure 

Account 

Total 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Income      
 Interest income - 63 11 - 74 

 Total income in Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 

- 63 11 - 74 

       
 Expense      
 Interest expense (39) - - - (39) 

 Total expense in Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 

(39) - - - (39) 

 
 

  Comparatives for 2016/17 

  Financial 
Liabilities 

Financial Assets 

  

Liabilities 
measured 

at 
amortised 

cost 

Loans and 
Receivables 

Available 
for Sale 
assets 

Fair Value 
through 

Income & 
Expenditure 

Account 

Total 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Income      
 Interest income - 73 19 - 92 

 Total income in Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 

- 73 19 - 92 

       
 Expense      
 Interest expense (49) - - - (49) 

 Total expense in Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services 

(49) - - - (49) 

 
 
 Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities 

 
  

 Some of the Council’s financial assets and liabilities are measured in the balance sheet at fair value on a 
recurring basis and are described in the following table, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy and 
including the valuation techniques used to measure them. 
 
Level 1 – fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, 

e.g. bond prices 
 
Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets 

or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments 
 
Level 3 – fair value is calculated by using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow 

forecasts or estimated creditworthiness. 
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Recurring Fair Value 

Measurements 
Input level in Fair 
Value Hierarchy 

Valuation Technique to 
measure Fair Value 

31/03/17 
 Fair Value 

31/03/18     
Fair Value 

    £’000 £’000 
  Financial Assets    
      
 Available-for-Sale – 

Money Market Funds 
1 Unadjusted quoted prices 

in active markets for 
identical shares 

- - 

      
  Financial 

Liabilities 
   

      
 Amortised Cost – Long-

term PWLB loans 
2 Other observable inputs 

from active markets 
(1,095) (1,058) 

      

  Total  (1,095) (1,058) 

 
 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and 

creditors are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost.  Their value can be assessed by calculating 
the present value of the cash flows that take place over the remaining life of the instruments, using the 
following assumptions: 
 

 The fair value of PWLB debt has been discounted at the PWLB published premature repayment 
rates in force at the close of business on the 31st March 2018. 

 Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over 
the whole life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans. 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised; 

 The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to the invoiced or billed amount. 
  
The fair values calculated are as follows: 

 
 Financial Liabilities     
      
  31st March 2017 31st March 2018 

  Carrying 
amount 

Fair value 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair value 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 PWLB Debt  1,000 1,095 1,000 1,058 
 Creditors repayable greater than 

12 months 
1,660 1,660 1,985 1,985 

 Creditors repayable within 12 
months 

4,193 4,193 5,984 5,984 

 Borrowing repayable within 12 
months 

12 12 12 12 

 Total financial liabilities 6,865 6,960 8,981 9,039 

 
 
 Financial Assets     
      
  31st March 2017 31st March 2018 

  Carrying 
amount 

Fair value 
Carrying 
amount 

Fair value 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,759 9,759 2,464 2,464 
 Short-Term Investments 10,035 10,035 12,026 12,026 
 Long Term Debtors 6 6 4 4 
 Debtors 571 571 535 535 

 Total Loans and receivables 20,371 20,371 15,029 15,029 
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 The fair value of short-term liabilities and assets including trade debtors and receivables is assumed to 
approximate to the carrying amount. 

 
 The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is higher than their balance sheet carrying 

amount because the Council’s portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest 
rate payable is higher than the current rates available for similar loans at the Balance Sheet date. 
 

 

18 LONG TERM DEBTORS 

    
 These relate to amounts owing to the Council which are being repaid over various periods longer than one 

year. 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Parish Council Interest Free Loan 6 4 

 
 

19 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 

    
 All assets held for sale are anticipated to be disposed of in a period of less than one year. 

 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance outstanding at start of year 700 550 
    
 Revaluation losses - - 
 Impairment losses (150) - 
 Assets Sold   -   - 
    

 Balance outstanding at year end 550 550 

 
 

20 INVENTORIES 

    
 The Council only holds an inventory of consumable materials, no other types of inventories are held. 

 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance at start of the year 81 88 
 Purchases 255 253 
 Recognised as an expense in the year (247) (256) 
 Written off/(on) balances (1) (9) 

 Balance outstanding at year end 88 76 
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21 SHORT-TERM DEBTORS 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Central Government Bodies 157 2,677 
 Other Local Authorities 1,484 1,936 
 NHS Bodies 78 76 
 Other entities and individuals 1,982 1,696 

 Total 3,701 6,385 

    
 The main reasons for the increase in the value of Short-Term Debtors are:  

 

 Coastal Defence Project - Monies due from the Environment Agency in relation to the project 
totalled £1.675m (2016/17 £nil). 

 VAT - Amounts due from outstanding VAT claims had increased to £0.463m in 2017/18 from 
£0.133m in 2016/17. 

 Housing Benefits Subsidy – The amount outstanding from the Department of Work and Pensions 
stood at £0.526m in 2017/18, whereas in 2016/17 there was an amount due from the Council of 
£0.081m. 
 

 

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

  
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following: 

  

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Cash held by the Authority 1 1 
 Bank Current Accounts 7,757 2,463 
 Term Deposits 2,001 - 

 Total 9,759 2,464 

 
 

23 SHORT-TERM CREDITORS 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Central Government Bodies 6,536 2,751 
 Other Local Authorities 1,173 994 
 Other entities and individuals 4,632 6,442 

 Total 12,341 10,187 

    
 The main reasons for the overall reduction in the value of Short-Term Creditors are: 

 

 Business Rate Retention - The proportionate shares due to Central Government, Lancashire 
County Council and Lancashire Fire Authority (of in-year surplus, arrears, payments received in 
advance and the provisions for Appeals and Bad Debts) has decreased to £2.781m in 2017/18 
from £6.654m in 2016/17 – a reduction of £3.873m 

 Delivery of new waste vehicles – amounts owing had increased to £1.186m in 2017/18 (£nil 
2016/17) 

 Fairhaven Coast Protection Scheme – retention monies had increased to £0.625m in 2017/18 (£nil 
2016/17)  
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24 PROVISIONS 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 NDR Appeals   
 Balance at 1st April 3,845 1,969 
 Additional provisions made in year 224 390 
 Amounts used in year – settled Appeals (2,100) (896) 

 Balance at 31st March 1,969 1,463 

    
 NDR Appeals Provision 

Due to the localisation of Business Rates, which became effective from the 1st April 2013, the Council has 
set aside a provision for any potential liabilities as a result of business rate payers’ appeals against rateable 
valuations. The Council is responsible for a 40% share of this liability along with the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities & Local Government (50%), Lancashire County Council (9%) and the Lancashire Fire 
Authority (1%). As at 31st March 2018, as a result of a number of large Appeals being settled in the year,  
the total value of the Provision for Appeals was reduced to £3.656m from £4.922m in 2016/17 with Fylde 
Council’s share of this being £1.463m (2016/17 £1.969m).  
 

 

25 LONG-TERM CREDITORS 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Section 106 Agreements 1,659 1,985 

 Total 1,659 1,985 

 
 Section 106 Agreements are for the fulfilment of obligations under certain Planning Application Approvals. 

The amounts held under Long-Term Creditors represents the expenditure commitments that are expected 
to be incurred against these Agreements after more than 12 months from the Balance Sheet date. 

 
 

26 USABLE RESERVES 

    
 Movements in the Authority’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement on 

page 30. 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 General Fund Balance 3,548 3,685 
 Earmarked General Fund Reserves 6,639 9,645 
 Capital Receipts Reserve 63 63 
 Capital Grants Unapplied 245 791 

 Total Usable Reserves 10,495 14,184 

 
 

27 UNUSABLE RESERVES 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Revaluation Reserve 11,444 11,468 
 Capital Adjustment Account 10,537 13,831 
 Pensions Reserve (28,612) (25,774) 
 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 1,511 383 
 Accumulated Absences Account (34) (33) 

 Total Unusable Reserves (5,154) (125) 

 
Further details of each of these reserves and accounts are set out on the following pages: 
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 Revaluation Reserve 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of 
its Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 
 

 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 

 used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or 

 disposed of and the gains are realised 
 
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, the date that the Reserve 
was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated to the balance on the Capital 
Adjustment Account. 

 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance at 1st April 11,363 11,444 
    
 Upward Revaluation of assets 144 280 
 Downward Revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged 

to the Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services 
(63) (256) 

 Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to 
the Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services 

81 24 

    
 Difference between fair value depreciation and historic cost 

depreciation 
- - 

 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped - - 

 Amounts written off to the Capital Adjustment Account - - 
    

 Balance as at 31st March 11,444 11,468 

 
 
 Capital Adjustment Account 

 
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or 
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of 
acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the 
Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with 
the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and 
enhancement.  
 
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on 
donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority. The Account also contains revaluation 
gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1st April 2007, the date that the Revaluation 
Reserve was created to hold such gains. 
 
Note 7 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those 
involving the Revaluation Reserve 
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  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance at 1st April 9,525 10,537 
    
 Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

  

  Charges for depreciation and  impairment of non-current assets (1,946) (1,561) 

  Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment - - 

  Amortisation of Intangible Assets - - 

  Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 
part of the gain/loss in disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

- (89) 

  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (1,245) (2,042) 
 

  De-minimis Capital Expenditure (12) (13) 

  (3,203) (3,705) 
 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve - - 

 Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in 
the year 

(3,203) (3,705) 

    
 Capital Financing applied in the year   
  Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure 

312 186 

  De-minimis Capital Receipts - 9 

  Capital Grants and Contributions credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to 
capital financing 

1,113 2,042 

  Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants 
Unapplied Account 

328 3,441 

  Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged 
against the General Fund 

672 672 

  Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 1,790 649 

  4,215 6,999 
    

 Balance as at 31st March 10,537 13,831 

 
 
 Pensions Reserve 

 
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. 
The Authority accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities 
recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside 
to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Authority 
makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly 
responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the 
benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet 
them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits 
come to be paid.  

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance at 1st April (23,305) (28,612) 
    
 Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/asset (4,613) 3,856 
 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited 

to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

(694) (1,018) 

    

 Balance as at 31st March (28,612) (25,774) 
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 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council 
tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council tax payers 
compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the 
Collection Fund. 
 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance at 1st April (2,044) 1,511 
    
 Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is different from council tax and non-domestic rates income 
calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 

3,555 (1,128) 

    

 Balance as at 31st March 1,511 383 

 
 
 Accumulated Absences Account 

 
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General 
Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual 
leave entitlement carried forward at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the 
General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the Account. 
 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Balance at 1st April (32) (34) 
    
 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 

preceding year 
32 34 

 Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (34) (33) 

 Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an 
accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 
year in accordance with statutory requirements 

(2) 1 

    

 Balance as at 31st March (34) (33) 

 
 

28 CASH FLOW STATEMENT – OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

    
 The cash flows for operating activities include the following items 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Interest Received (92) (74) 
 Interest Paid 49 39 
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 The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash movements: 
    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Depreciation 1,947 1,561 
 Increase/(Decrease) in impairment for Bad Debts (1,948) (214) 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors 1,157 266 
 (Increase)/Decrease in Debtors (62) (5,232) 
 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (7) 12 
 Movement in Pension Liability 694 1,018 
 Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services 
49 (217) 

 Total 1,830 (2,806) 

 
 

 The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that are 
investing and financing activities: 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Capital Grants included in the net surplus/deficit on the provision 

of services 
(479) (3,987) 

 Total (479) (3,987) 

 
 

29 CASH FLOW STATEMENT – INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 

and intangible assets 
(3,555) (5,595) 

 Purchase of Short Term Investments (3,000) (2,000) 
 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets 
13 195 

 Other receipts from investing activities 1,592 6,029 

 Net cash flows from investing activities (4,950) (1,371) 

 
 

30 CASH FLOW STATEMENT – FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Other receipts from financing activities 4,744 (4,094) 
 Repayments of short-term and long-term borrowing (1,300) - 

 Net cash flows from financing activities 3,444 (4,094) 

 
 

31 TRADING OPERATIONS 

    
 The Council operates one trading activity which is for Grounds Maintenance, providing services to external 

clients within and outside of the borough. The financial results are as follows: 
 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Turnover (673) (727) 
 Expenditure                                                                             639 713 

 Net (Surplus) / Deficit on trading operations for the year (34) (14) 
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 The Grounds Maintenance trading operations are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement. In 2017/18, the Grounds Maintenance operations generated a surplus of £13,920 
compared with a surplus of £33,996 in 2016/17. In addition to the surpluses shown above, these activities 
also benefit the Council by providing a positive contribution to corporate support service and service 
management costs. 

 
 

32 AGENCY SERVICES 

    
 The Council acts as agent for Lancashire County Council in respect of Highways work in the urban core 

and also street lighting, gully cleansing and special maintenance.  
 
A summary of the Off-Street Civil Parking Enforcement Parking Accounts, as required by Section 55 of 
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, is shown below: 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Income (Penalty Charge Notice only)                                    (44) (42) 
 Expenditure                                                                             87 89 

 (Surplus) Deficit                                                                       43 47 

 
 

33 MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 

    
 The Authority paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year: 

 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Allowances 247 248 
 Expenses 4 3 

 Total 251 251 

 
 

34 OFFICERS REMUNERATION AND TERMINATION BENEFITS 

    
 The following table sets out the remuneration of Senior Officers whose salary was £50,000 or more 

(excluding employer’s pension contributions):  
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    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
         
 Chief Executive  2017/18 97 - - 97 15 112 

   2016/17 97 - - 97 12 109 

 Director – Resources  2017/18 76 - - 76 11   87 

   2016/17 74 - - 74   9   83 

 Director – Development Services  2017/18 69 - - 69 11   80 

   2016/17 68 - - 68   9   77 

 Chief Financial Officer  2017/18 64 - - 64  10   74 

   2016/17 64 - - 64   8   72 
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 The remuneration shown in the table above includes payments for services performed in relation to 
elections (General/Parliamentary election, County Council election and local District Council by-election) 
and Neighbourhood Plan referenda during 2017/18. 
 

 
 In addition to the above Senior Officers, other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for 

the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) were as follows:  
 

 Remuneration Bands 2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Main Bands:   
 £50,000 - £54,999 1 1 

 
 
 Exit Packages 

 
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
departures are set out in the table below:  

 

 
Exit Package Cost 
band (incl. special 

payments) 

Number of 
Compulsory 

Redundancies 

Number of other 
departures 

agreed 

Total number of 
exit packages 
by cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages by 
each band 

  2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 2016/17 2017/18 

  No. No. No. No. No. No. £’000 £’000 
          

 £0 – £20,000 3 2 1 - 4 2 25   6 
 £20,001 - £40,000 - - 1 1 1 1 29 40 
 £40,001 - £60,000 - - - - - - - - 
 £60,001 - £80,000 - - - - - - - - 
 £80,001 - £100,000 - - - - - - - - 
 £100,001 - £150,000 - - - - - - - - 
          

  3 2 2 1 5 3   

          

 Total cost included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 54 46 
 
 
 In 2017/18 the authority terminated the contracts of 3 employees, incurring costs of £45,703 (£54,201 in 

2016/17).           
   

 

35 EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS 

    
 The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to external audit and inspection:  

 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Fees payable to KPMG with regard to external audit services 

carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 
48 48 

 Rebate received from Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA)                -  (7) 
 Fees payable to KPMG for the certification of grant claims and 

returns for the year 
9 8 

 Fees payable to the Cabinet Office in respect of the National 
Fraud Initiative 

2 - 

 Total 59 49 
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36 GRANT INCOME 

    
 The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement in 2017/18: 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income   
 Revenue Support Grant (net of LCTS adjustment) (794) (326) 
 New Homes Bonus (1,863) (1,665) 
 Small Business Rate Relief Grant (568) (1,081) 
 Council Tax Freeze Grant (6) - 
 Transition Grant (56) (56) 
 Other (41) (51) 

 Total (3,328) (3,179) 
    
 Credited to Services   
 Housing & Council Tax Benefits (18,777) (18,258) 
 Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (112) (113) 
 Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute (1,114) (2,042) 
 Other (5) (60) 

  (20,008) (20,473) 
    

 Total (23,336) (23,652) 

 
 

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

    
 The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that 

have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. 
Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been 
constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s 
ability to bargain freely with the Council. Related parties include: 

 
(a) Central Government 

The UK Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council – it 
is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the 
majority of its funding in the form of grants, and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that 
the Council has with other parties.  

 
(b) Members of the Council 

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. Each 
Councillor has agreed to be bound by a code of conduct, requiring them to disclose certain personal 
interests on a register, which is available for public inspection at the Town Hall, Lytham St Annes. 
These declarations are also is accessible on the Council website.  

 
There is one transactions to disclose in relation to 2017/18 relating to a payment of £320 to Councillor 
Raymond Thomas for the provision of photographic services to the Council. This relationship is listed 
by Councillor Thomas as a ‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interest’ in the declaration of Members Interests. 
This declaration, along with those of all Members, is accessible on the Council website.  
 
The Council makes a number of Member appointments to outside bodies each year. In relation to 
the 2017/18 financial year these are detailed in the Council report of 3rd April 2017 which is available 
on the Councils website.  

 
The Council made a financial contribution to a number of partner organisations during 2017/18, most 
notably: 

 Fylde Citizens Advice Bureau 

 Age UK Lancashire 

 Face to Face  
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(c) Senior Council Officers 
Members of the Council’s Management Team may exert influence control over the Council’s financial 
and operating policies. In the furtherance of transparency each member of the Management Team 
has submitted information regarding outside bodies with which they have an association. All such 
associations are shown below: 

 
o Chief Executive: Director of Blackpool Fylde and Wyre Economic Development Company 

Limited (Economic regeneration company) 
o Director of Resources: Social member of ‘Tangent’ (women’s arm of the Round Table 

Association) 
o Director of Development Services: Director of Blackpool Fylde and Wyre Economic 

Development Company Limited (Economic regeneration company) 
 

There were no transactions with the related bodies in the year. 
 

(d) Partnership working 
During 2017/18 the Council continued to work both formally and informally in partnership with 
neighbouring authorities. The main partnership operations were as follows : 

  

     
  Lancashire County Council  Flood Prevention  

     
     
  Blackpool Council  Payroll services  

    Human Resources  

    Health & Safety  

    Revenues & Benefits Services   

    Deputy Monitoring Officer  

    Coastal Programme Board  

    Mayors Attendant  

    Economic Development Partnership  

    Grounds Maintenance - Blackpool Coastal Housing  

    CCTV System Maintenance  

    Bathing Water Quality management  

    Property surveying/maintenance  

     
     
  Wyre Council  Coastal Programme Board  

    Economic Development Partnership  

    CCTV System Maintenance  

    Bathing Water Quality management  

     
     
  Preston City Council  Financial and Treasury Management Support   

    Corporate Fraud Service  

     
     
    
 
 

(e) Other Public Bodies 
Precepts were raised for Lancashire County Council, Lancashire Police and Crime Commissioner, 
Lancashire Combined Fire Authority, and local Town and Parish Councils within the Fylde area. 
Details of these are contained within the Collection Fund statements. 

 
(f) Associated Companies and Joint Venture Partners 

Fylde Council has no associated companies or joint venture partners. 
 

(g) Lowther Trust 
A Trust board was formed in 2009/10 consisting of 7 Trustees, one being an elected member of Fylde 
Council. The remaining Trustees were appointed from interested members of the public following an 
open application process. Prior to this the Council was the sole Trustee and provided all management 
and administration resources. From April 2012 a new arrangement between the Council and the Trust 
saw the transfer of responsibility for all day-to-day management to the Trust with the Council meeting 
an agreed level of deficit funding over the subsequent five-year period. 

 
(h) Other Partnerships 

The Council has an arrangement with the charity Refurb, working as a Bulky Waste collector, to 
deliver the chargeable bulky waste collection service. 
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38 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING 

    
 The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value 

of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. 
Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by 
the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a 
measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed.  
 
The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 
 

 Capital Financing Requirement 2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 6,075 5,403 
    
 Capital Investment   
 Property, Plant and Equipment 2,298 5,271 
 Investment Properties - - 
 Intangible Assets - - 
 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 1,245 2,042 
    
 Sources of Finance   
 Capital Receipts (312) (186) 
 Government Grants and Other Contributions (1,441) (5,482) 
 Sums set aside from Revenue - - 
 Direct Revenue Contributions (1,790) (649) 
 MRP/Loans Fund Principal (672) (672) 
    

 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 5,403 5,727 

    
    
 Explanation of Movements in Year   
 Increase/(Decrease) in underlying need to borrowing 

(unsupported by government financial assistance) 
(672) 324 

    

 Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (672) 324 

 
 

39 LEASES 

    
 Authority as Lessor 

 
Operating Leases 
 
The Council acts as lessor in respect of land and property owned by it and leased to tenants. The value of 
the income from rents associated with these agreements, and included within the Council’s Income and 
Expenditure account, is as follows: 
 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Land and Property Leases  315  309 

 
 The capital value held within the balance sheet at 31st March 2018 in respect of land and property 

generating leasehold income is £3.155m (2016/17 £3.031m). The accumulated depreciation charge 
applicable to these assets reflected in the 2017/18 financial statements is nil. 
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The future lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
 

  
31st March 

2017 
31st March 

2018 

  £’000 £’000 
 Not Later than one year 99 107 
 Later than one year but not later than 5 years 398 427 
 Later than 5 years 5,637 6,084 

  6,134 6,618 

 
 

40 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 

    
 An impairment review during the course of the year identified reductions in the value of the following 

Council’s Non-Current Assets. A summary of these impairments is shown below: 
 

  
31st March 

2017 
31st March 

2018 

  £’000 £’000 
 Public Offices 150 - 
 Ashton Pavilion Cafe 10 - 
 Town Hall 660 433 

  820 433 

 
 

41 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES 

    
 Participation in Pension Schemes 

 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the authority makes contributions towards 
the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees 
retire, the authority has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that 
employees earn their future entitlement.  
 
The authority participates in two post-employment schemes: 
 

 The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered locally by Lancashire County Council – this 
is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning that the Authority and employees pay 
contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with 
investment assets. 

 Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement – this is 
an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are 
made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and cash 
has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.  

 
Transactions relating to Post-employment Benefits 
 
The cost of retirement benefits are recognised in the reported Cost of Services when they are earned by 
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required 
against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is 
reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions 
have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance 
via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 
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 Local Government Pension Scheme 2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement   
    
 Cost of Services:   
 Service Cost, comprising:   
 - Current Service Cost 1,134 1,715 
 Other Operating Expenditure   
 -  Administration expenses 24 25 
 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure   
 -  Net interest expense 793 662 

 Total Post-employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services 

1,951 2,402 

    
 Other Post-employment Benefit Charged to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
  

    - Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in 
the net interest expense) 

(7,288) (673) 

    - Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in financial 
assumptions 

11,901 (3,183) 

 Total Post-employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

4,613 (3,856) 

    
 Movement in Reserves Statement   
 - Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on 

the Provision of Services for post-employment benefit in 
accordance with the Code 

(694) (1,018) 

    
 Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for pensions  

in the year: 
 

 - Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 1,257 1,384 

 
 

 Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
  
 The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its defined 

benefit plan is as follows: 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Present Value of the defined benefit obligation (89,266) (85,136) 
 Fair Value of plan assets 60,654 61,909 

 Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (28,612) (23,227) 

 
 

 Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets 
  

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Opening fair value of scheme assets 52,914 60,654 
 Interest income 1,828 1,541 
 Re-measurement gain/(loss):   
 - The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included 

in the net interest expense 
7,288 673 

 Administration expenses (24) (25) 
 Contribution from employer 1,257 1,384 
 Contributions from employees into the scheme 318 331 
 Benefits paid (2,927) (2,649) 

 Closing fair value of scheme assets 60,654 61,909 
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 Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation) 
  

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Opening Balance at 1st April 76,219 89,266 
 Current service cost 1,134 1,715 
 Interest cost 2,621 2,203 
 Contributions from scheme participants 318 331 
 Re-measurement gain/(loss):   
    - Actuarial Experience (gains) and losses (3,344) - 
    - Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in financial 

assumptions 
15,863 (3,183) 

    - Actuarial (gains) and losses arising on changes in 
demographic assumptions 

(618) - 

 Past service costs - - 
 Benefits paid (2,927) (2,649) 
 Lump sum pre-repayment  (2,547) 

 Closing Balance at 31st March 89,266 85,136 

 
 

 
 

 Scheme History 
 

 2007/08 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Present Value of the defined 

benefit obligation 
(67,398) (78,952) (76,219) (89,266) (85,136) 

 Fair Value of plan assets 47,087 51,717   52,914 60,654 61,909 

 Surplus/(Deficit) in the Scheme (20,311) (27,235) (23,305) (28,612) (23,227) 

 
 
 

During 2017/18 the Council made a £2.547m lump sum pre-payment of employer pension contributions in 
respect of 2018/19 and 2019/20, as detailed in the Narrative Report. The net liability on the pension fund 
as shown above has therefore been reduced by £2.547m to £23.227m, and this if the figure shown on the 
balance sheet. 
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 Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised: 
  

 
Fair value of scheme assets 

2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
    
 Cash:   
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 630 (1,496) 

  Cash Accounts - 2,613 

  Net current assets - (1,375) 

 Sub-total cash 630 (258) 
    
 Equity instruments:   
    By industry type   
  Consumer - - 

  Manufacturing - - 

  Energy and utilities - - 

  Financial institutions - - 
  Health and Care - - 
  Information Technology - - 
  Miscellaneous/Unclassified Total - - 

 Sub-total equity - - 
    
 Bonds:   
  Corporate 996 1,088 
  Government 1,200 1,477 
  Overseas - 60 

 Sub-total bonds 2,196 2,625 
    
 Property:   
  Retail 1,651 1,702 
  Commercial 3,693 4,119 
  Residential - - 

 Sub-total property 5,344 5,821 
    
 Private Equity:   
  UK 688 - 
  Overseas 3,216 4,494 

 Sub-total private equity 3,904 4,494 
    
 Other Investment Funds:   
  Infrastructure 7,319 7,845 
  Credit Funds 13,592 11,407 
  Pooled Fixed Income - 1,527 
  Emerging Markets ETF - - 
  Indirect Property Funds 855 940 
  UK Pooled Equity Funds - - 
  Overseas Pooled Equity Funds 26,814 27,508 

 Sub-total other investment funds 48,580 49,227 
    

 Total Assets 60,654 61,909 

 
 

 Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 
  
 Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the 

pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, 
etc. The Pension Fund liabilities has been assessed by Mercers Ltd, an independent firm of actuaries, 
estimates for the pension fund being based on the last valuation of the Scheme as at 31st March 2016. 
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The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been: 
 

  
31st March 

2017 
31st March 

2018 

  £’000 £’000 
 Mortality assumptions:   
 Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:   
 - Men 22.6 years 22.7 years 
 - Women 25.2 years 25.4 years 
 Longevity at 65 for future pensioners (aged 65 in 20 years' time) :   
 - Men 24.9 years 25.0 years 
 - Women 27.9 years 28.0 years 
    
 Rate of CPI inflation 2.3 2.1 
 Rate of increase in salaries 3.8 3.6 
 Rate of increase in pensions 2.3 2.2 
 Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.5 2.6 

 
 * An adjustment has been made for short term pay restraint in line with the most recent actuarial valuation. 

 
 The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the 

table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes 
of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the 
assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in 
longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In 
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The 
estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an 
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in 
preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period. 

 

  

Approximate 
increase 

(decrease) in 
Employee 
Liabilities 

 Changes in assumptions at 31st March 2018 £’000 
   
 0.1%p.a. increase in discount rate (1,417) 
 0.1%p.a. increase in inflation 1,439 
 0.1%p.a. increase in pay growth 203 
 1 year increase in life expectancy 1,767 

 
 

 Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows 
  
 The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The 

County Council has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100%. The 
maximum deficit recovery period for the Fund has been set at 19 years. Funding levels are monitored on 
an annual basis. The next triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31st March 2019. 
 
The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public Pensions 
Services Act 2013. Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales and the 
other main existing public service schemes may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31st March 
2014 (or service after 31st March 2015 for other main existing public service pension schemes in England 
and Wales). The Act provides for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish 
new career average revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits to certain public 
servants. 
 
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 16 years, 2017/18 
(16 years, 2016/17). 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Fylde Council 81 Statement of Accounts 2017/18 

 

42 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

    
 Contingent Liabilities: 

 

 Insurance Claims – As at 31st March 2018, the Council has outstanding insurance claims against 
it with a reserve amount of £206,612 (16/17, £228,002). However, the Council’s liability is limited to 
the excess on the insurance policy, with the maximum amount payable by the Council on these 
claims being £8,190 (16/17, £11,250) for revenue items. No adjustments have been made within 
the Accounts for these revenue items as, at the balance sheet date, it was not known if the claims 
were successful. 

 

 Section 106 (s106) Agreements - S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 allows a local 
planning authority to enter in to a legally binding agreement or planning obligation with a landowner 
in association with the granting of planning permission. The obligation is termed a S106 Agreement 
and S106 monies received by the Council are used to support the provision of services and 
infrastructure such as highways, recreational facilities, education, health and affordable housing, 
which is necessary as part of the development or to mitigate its impact. Such agreements or 
obligations may lay down conditions that monies must be spent by a specified date and on specified 
items. If these conditions are not met the monies may have to be returned to the developer and in 
some cases interest may also be payable. The Council has a number of S106 agreements. The 
balance of monies held as long-term creditors in respect of those agreements (i.e. those that have 
more than 12 months to run) is £1.985m, as detailed in Note 25 to this Statement of Accounts. These 
accounts have been prepared on the basis that no monies are returnable at the balance sheet date 
as it is the Council’s intention to spend the money as required under the agreements rather than 
repaying it to developers. 

 

 Accountable Body Status - The Authority has been appointed Accountable Body status for a 
number of schemes and projects operated by the Government and related agencies.  Accountable 
Bodies have to operate within rigorous and stringent Government regulations giving wide ranging 
rights for grant to be clawed back if specific output targets are not met by the partner 
organisations. The total value of the projects for which the Council was acting as accountable body 
as at 31st March 2018 is below £250k. These accounts have been prepared on the basis that none 
of the grants involved will either be clawed back or withheld as it is the Council’s intention to spend 
the money as required to deliver the projects. 

 

 Planning Appeals – There continues to be scope for tension between the need to increase housing 
supply, as identified by central government, and the aspirations of some local communities. Planning 
applications for significant housing development which are refused by the Council can generate 
appeals. The number of potential appeals and the cost of defending them, which may also include 
the award of costs against the Council on occasion, cannot accurately be assessed in advance. Any 
costs incurred beyond the budgeted level will be dealt with via updates to the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. It is anticipated that any necessary additional financial resources in respect 
of planning appeals would be identified from within existing approved budgets and consequently 
there would be no impact on the Council’s overall budget requirement. 

 

 Planning Enforcement – Retrospective planning permission has been granted on appeal for the 
continued occupation of 6 pitches at a larger unauthorised gypsy site at Hardhorn. Although that 
part of the site that remains occupied is now authorised, planning conditions attached to the planning 
permission require certain work to be carried out. The manner in which these planning conditions 
are drafted means that failure to comply with them would require the site to be vacated.  If this 
occurs, then the Council may have to take action in order to ensure compliance with the conditions, 
which in itself may be subject to planning appeals or legal challenges which may be costly. However 
it is anticipated that any necessary additional financial resources in respect of planning enforcement 
costs would be identified from within existing approved budgets and consequently there would be 
no impact on the Council’s overall budget requirement. 

 

 NNDR Appeals - The Council has made a provision for NNDR Appeals based upon its best 
estimates of the actual liability as at the year-end in known appeals. It is not possible to quantify 
appeals that have not yet been lodged with the Valuation Office so there is a risk to the Council that 
national and local appeals may have a future impact on the accounts. The total value of the Provision 
for Appeals has been reduced to £3.656m from £4.922m in 2016/17 with Fylde Council’s share of 
this being £1.463m (2016/17 £1.969m). It is anticipated that this level of provision is sufficient to 
meet the full cost of outstanding appeals.   
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Contingent Assets: 
 

 Claims for recovery of overpaid VAT & interest 
 

o Leisure Services Income - Historically the Council has accounted for VAT on income relating 
to certain leisure activities. Following advice from the Council’s external VAT advisors PWC 
(PricewaterhouseCoopers) the Council submitted a claim for the overpaid VAT going back to 
2008. On the 13th July 2017 the Court of Justice of the European Union (CJEU) issued its 
judgement that HMRC were incorrect in their application of VAT to leisure activity income. 
HMRC has accepted that judgement and is now intending to process claims for incorrectly 
paid output tax. The net value of the claim to the Council is estimated at up to £200k. At the 
time of writing a response by HMRC to the Fylde Council claim is outstanding but a final 
decision is expected during 2018/19.     
 

o Postal Service Charges - The Council has been accounting for VAT on charges for postal 
services in accordance with the VAT classification of those charges at the time as determined 
by HMRC. Following advice from the Council’s external VAT advisors, PWC, the Council has 
lodged a restitution claim in the High Court for the recovery of VAT paid in respect of postal 
services for the period prior to a change in the VAT classification of such charges which took 
effect from 2011/12. If the claim is successful the amount due to the Council for both the claim 
and accumulated interest could be significant (estimated at up to £200k). At the time of writing 
there is no certainty that the amount claimed will be received nor the timescale by which the 
outcome will be known. 

     

 Housing Stock Transfer - Right to Buy (RTB) Sharing Arrangements - Following the transfer of 
housing stock from the Council, New Fylde Housing (now Progress Housing Group) has agreed to 
share RTB receipts, calculated according to the formula as set out in the transfer agreement of 2nd 
October 2000. This arrangement will terminate at the end of the financial year 2029/30, on 31st 
March 2030. The amount the Council receives in any given year is dependent on prevailing market 
conditions. During 2017/18 the Council received capital receipts in respect of RTB sales in the sum 
of £186k (2016/17, £9k). Receipts of this nature in future years are expected to be at an average of 
£25k per annum but will vary from year-to-year.   

 
 

43 NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

    
 (i) Key Risks 

 
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, the key risks are: 
 

 Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council; 

 Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments; 

 Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in 
such measures as interest rates movements. 

 
(ii) Overall Procedures for Managing Risk 
 
The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets, and 
implementing restrictions to minimise these risks.  The procedures for risk management are set out through 
a legal framework set out in the Local government Act 2003 and the associated regulations.  These require 
the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management in the Public Services and investment guidance issued through the Act.  Overall these 
procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following ways: 
 

 by formally adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice; 
 

 by the adoption of a Treasury Policy Statement and treasury management procedures within the 
constitution. 

 

 by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three years limiting: 
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o The Council’s overall borrowing; 
o Its maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates; 
o Its maximum and minimum exposures of the maturity structure of its debt; 
o Its maximum annual exposures to investments maturing beyond a year. 

 

 by approving an investment strategy for the forthcoming year setting out its criteria for both 
investing and selecting investment counterparties in compliance with the Government Guidance. 

 
These are required to be reported and approved at or before the Council’s annual Council Tax setting 
meeting.  These items are reported with the annual Treasury Management Strategy which outlines the 
detailed approach to managing risk in relation to the Council’s financial instrument exposure.  Actual 
performance is also reported, mid-year to Council and after year end to Finance and Democracy 
Committee. 
 
The annual Treasury Management Strategy which incorporates the prudential indicators was approved by 
Council in March 2017. This was updated in the Mid-Year Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management 
Monitoring report in December 2017. These reports are available on the Council’s website. 
 
Treasury policies are implemented by an in-house treasury team.  The Council maintains written principles 
for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as interest rate risk, 
credit risk and the investment of surplus cash through Treasury Management Practices (TMPs). These 
TMPs are a requirement of the Code of Practice and are reviewed periodically. 
 
(iii) Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the 
Council’s customers.  
 
The risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made 
with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with Fitch, 
Moody's and Standard & Poors Ratings Services. The Annual Investment Strategy also imposes a 
maximum amount and time to be invested with a financial institution located within each category.  
 
The key areas of the Investment Strategy are that the minimum criteria for investment counterparties 
include:  

 Credit ratings of a minimum Long Term A- 

 UK or EU Member Banks domiciled in a country with a minimum sovereign rating of AA+ 

 Limits on investments in certain sectors (e.g. Money Market Funds, Building Societies, foreign 
countries). 

 
The following analysis summarises the Authority’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk from trade 
debtors based on local historical experience over the last three financial years: 

 

 
 
 

 
As at 31st 

March 2018 
 

£’000 

 
Historical 

experience 
of default 

% 

Adjustment 
for market 
conditions 
at 31/03/18 

% 

Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 
to default 

£’000 

Estimated 
maximum 
exposure 

At 31/03/17 
£’000 

 a b c a * c  
      
Debtors 632 13.32% 13.32% 84 82 

 
 
 The Council does not generally allow credit for its trade debtors. Of the £0.632m (£0.662m 2016/17) 

outstanding for debtors, £0.304m (£0.587m 2016/17) is overdue.  The past due amount can be analysed 
by age as follows: 

 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Less than three months 513 167 
 Three months to one year 16 26 
 More than one year 58 111 

  587 304 
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 (iv) Liquidity risk 
 
The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above (the setting 
and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the treasury and investment strategy reports), as 
well as through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of 
Practice. This seeks to ensure that cash is available when needed.  
 
The Council has ready access to borrowings from the money markets to cover any day-to-day cash flow 
requirements, and access to the Public Works Loan Board and money markets for longer term funds. The 
Council is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which 
ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  There is no significant risk that the 
Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments. 

 
 The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows: 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Less than one year 4,205 5,995 
 Between one and two years 1,018 1,020 
 Between two and five years 247 622 
 Between five and ten years 1,066 568 
 More than ten years 329 776 

  6,865 8,981 

 
 Amounts payable relating to statutory debts, e.g. council tax, non-domestic rates are not included in the 

analysis above as they are outside the scope of the Financial Instrument provisions. 
 

 The maturity analysis of financial assets is as follows: 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Less than one year 20,365 15,025 
 Between one and two years 2 2 
 Between two and three years 2 2 
 More than three years 2 0 

  20,371 15,029 

 
 (v) Market risk 

 
(a)   Interest rate risk – The Council has limited exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings 
and investments. Borrowings are not carried at “Fair Value” on the balance sheet, so nominal gains and 
losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement. 
However, changes in interest receivable on investments will be posted to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and affect the General Fund Balance. 
 

If interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be: 

 

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £’000 £’000 
 Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings*                                                                        - - 
 Increase in interest receivable on investments                                                                                       221 208 

 Impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account                                                                                          221 208 

    

 Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets                                                                            - - 

 Impact on Statement of Recognised Gains & Losses                                                                             - - 

    
 Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no 

impact on Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account or 
Statement of Recognised Gains & Losses) 

 
 

11 

 
 

11 

  
*The Council’s long-term borrowing is all at fixed rates. 
The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being 
reversed. 
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(b)  Price risk – The Council, excluding the pension fund, does not generally invest in instruments with 
this type of risk, e.g. equity shares or marketable bonds. 
 
(c)  Foreign exchange risk – The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies.  It therefore has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates. 
 

 

44 LANCASHIRE BUSINESS RATES POOL 

    
 In 2017/18, Fylde Council was part of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool. In a Business Rate Pool, tariffs, 

top-ups, levies and safety nets can be combined. This can result in a significantly lower levy rate or even 
a zero levy rate meaning that more or all of the business rate growth can be retained within the pool area 
instead of being payable to the Government. 
 
The Lancashire Business Rates Pool, which includes most but not all of the local authorities in Lancashire, 
has been designated by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government and the retained 
levy in Lancashire has been distributed as follows: 
 

 Lancashire County Council is paid 10% of the overall retained levy; 

 Each district within the pool retains 90% of their levy.  

  
With regard to this council, the total retained levy is £664,723, hence under pooling we have 
benefited from extra income of £598,251. Lancashire County Council has received the remaining 
10% of retained levy. 
 
As part of the pool arrangements, one authority must be designated as lead authority, which in the case 
of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool is Ribble Valley Borough Council. As part of this arrangement a 
fee of £2,000 is payable by each pool member to Ribble Valley Borough Council in their role as lead. In 
the Lancashire Business Rates Pool each council bears its own risk and takes its own reward under the 
pool agreement, i.e. no sharing of a volatility reserve. 
 
Below is a summary of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool members and relevant transactions. 

 

 
Lancashire Business Rates 

Pool Members 2017/18 
Authority 

Type 

Tariffs and 
Top-Ups in 
Respect of 

2017/18 

Retained 
Levy on 
Growth 
2017/18 

10% Retained 
Levy Payable 
to/received by 

Lancashire 
County Council 

Net 
Retained 

Levy 
2017/18 

   £ £ £ £ 
 Chorley Borough Council Tariff 6,073,147 (843,563) 84,356 (759,207) 

 Fylde Borough Council Tariff 7,565,517 (664,723) 66,472 (598,251) 

 Hyndburn Borough Council Tariff 3,706,620 (432,570) 43,257 (389,313) 

 Pendle Borough Council Tariff 3,164,521 (518,196) 51,820 (466,376) 

 Ribble Valley Borough Council Tariff 4,026,300 (661,344) 66,134 (595,210) 

 Rossendale Borough Council Tariff 2,534,068 (518,640) 51,864 (466,776) 

 South Ribble Borough Council Tariff 9,644,242 (1,236,560) 123,656 (1,112,904) 

 West Lancashire Borough Council Tariff 8,123,116 (669,688) 66,969 (602,719) 

 Wyre Borough Council Tariff 6,385,329 (466,171) 46,617 (419,554) 

 Lancashire County Council Top-Up (147,643,257) - (601,145) (601,145) 

 Central Government - 96,420,397 - - - 

       
 Total   - (6,011,455) - (6,011,455) 

 
 

 
 
The Net Retained Levy for the council is shown within Business Rates Retention income on the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with the council’s own share of growth 
achieved in the year. 
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COLLECTION FUND 
 

 

2016/17  Notes 2017/18 

   Council 
Tax 

Business 
Rates 

Total 

£’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 
 INCOME:-     
      
(47,618) Council Tax Receivable  (50,050) - (50,050) 
(26,836) Business Rates Receivable  - (23,812) (23,812) 

- Transitional Protection Payments receivable  - - - 
      

(74,454)   (50,050) (23,812) (73,862) 

      
 EXPENDITURE:-     
      
 Apportionment of Previous Years Surplus/(Deficit)     

(820) Central Government  - 1,414 1,414 
221 Lancashire County Council  214 255 469 
52 Lancashire Police Authority  30 - 30 

5 Lancashire Combined Fire Authority  12 28 40 
(586) Fylde Council  40 1,131 1,171 

      
 Precepts, Demands and Shares     

11,984 Central Government  - 12,191 12,191 
15,071 Fylde Council  5,733 9,753 15,486 
35,931 Lancashire County Council  35,777 2,194 37,971 
4,663 Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire  4,845 - 4,845 
2,123 Lancashire Combined Fire Authority  1,918 244 2,162 

852 Parish Councils 3 910 - 910 
      
 Charges to Collection Fund     

748 Write offs of uncollectable amounts  518 417 935 
209 Increase/(Decrease) in Bad Debt Provision  504 312 816 

(4,691) Increase/(Decrease) in Appeals Provision  - (1,266) (1,266) 
112 Cost of Collection  - 113 113 

- Reconciliation Adjustments  - - - 
      

65,874 
 

 50,501 26,786 77,287 

      
      

(8,580) (Surplus)/Deficit arising during the Year  451 2,974 3,425 
      

4,773 (Surplus)/Deficit brought forward at 1st April  (302) (3,505) (3,807) 
      

(3,807) (Surplus)/Deficit carried forward at 31st March 1 149 (531) (382) 
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NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND 
 

1) ALLOCATION OF COLLECTION FUND BALANCES 

 

2016/17   2017/18 

   Council 
Tax 

Business 
Rates 

Total 

£’000   £’000 £’000 £’000 
 Allocation of Collection Fund Balances     

(1,443) Fylde Council  20 (212) (192) 
(1,752) Central Government  - (266) (266) 

(535) Lancashire County Council  108 (48) 60 
(30) Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire  15 - 15 
(47) Lancashire Combined Fire Authority  6 (5) 1 

      

(3,807) 
 

 149 (531) (382) 

 
 
 

2) COUNCIL TAX BASE 

    
 The Council Tax base for 2017/18 was calculated as follows:- 
     

 Property Band 
Chargeable 
Dwellings 

Band 
Multiplier 

Relevant 
Amount 

     
 Additional Band (Disabled) 13 5/9 7 
 Band A 3,952 6/9 2,634 
 Band B 4,509 7/9 3,507 
 Band C 7,066 8/9 6,281 
 Band D 5,956 9/9 5,956 
 Band E 4,209 11/9 5,145 
 Band F 2,282 13/9 3,297 
 Band G 1,410 15/9 2,350 
 Band H 107 18/9 214 
 Other Adjustments 246 - 246 

 

 Total Relevant Amount   29,637 
 Multiplied by: Estimated Collection Rate   98.25% 

    29,119 
 Add: Other Adjustments   165 

 Council Tax Base   29,284 

     
 A Band D Council Tax was set at £1,605.67, split £1,221.74 for Lancashire County Council, £152.98 for 

Fylde Council, £165.45 for the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire and £65.50 for Lancashire 
Combined Fire Authority. Council Tax-payers in St Annes and Lytham also paid a Special Expenses 
charge at Band D of £71.77 whilst Parish and Town Councils agreed additional Council Tax charges of 
between £14.26 and £85.64 at Band D level. 
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3) PARISH PRECEPTS 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

  £ £ 
 Bryning-with-Warton 89,502 96,711 
 Elswick 28,058 29,695 
 Freckleton 99,600  102,795  
 Greenhalgh-with-Thistleton 4,974  4,869  
 Kirkham 177,032  189,531  
 Little Eccleston-with-Larbreck 8,000  10,219  
 Medlar-with-Wesham 57,594 60,426 
 Newton-with-Clifton 50,023  52,525  
 Ribby-with-Wrea 48,829  51,201  
 Singleton 17,935  18,652  
 Staining 60,668  61,373  
 St.Annes 175,193  195,358  
 Treales, Roseacre and Wharles 10,332  10,807  
 Weeton-with-Preese 15,470  16,244  
 Westby-with-Plumptons 8,955  9,454  

  852,165 909,860 

 
 
 

4) NON-DOMESTIC RATE (NDR) 

    

  2016/17 2017/18 

    
 NDR Rateable Value as at 31st March £64,166,951 £66,739,533 
 NDR Multiplier 0.497 0.479 
 NDR Multiplier (Small Business) 0.484 0.466 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
 

Scope of responsibility 
 
Fylde Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 
standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the 
governance of its affairs and for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 
exercise of its functions and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
In 2007, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (SOLACE) published best practice guidance, ‘Delivering Corporate Governance in Local Government 
Framework’ to assist authorities in reviewing their governance arrangements.  This Council subsequently approved 
and adopted a code of corporate governance, which was consistent with these principles.  This guidance was 
subsequently updated in 2016 to define seven new core principles which should underpin the governance 
arrangements for all public bodies. A copy of the code is on our website at http://www.fylde.gov.uk or can be obtained 
from the Town Hall, St Annes Road West, St Annes. This statement explains how the Council has complied with the 
code and also meets the requirements of regulation 6 (b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 in relation to the 
publication of this statement. 

 
The seven core principles are: 
 

1. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and respecting the law 

2. Ensuring openness and stakeholder engagement 

3. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

4. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcome 

5. Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 

6. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial management 

7. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver effective accountability 

Each local authority is required to conduct a review at least once a year on the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control and include a statement on such a review within its published Statement of Accounts.  This annual governance 
statement is the culmination of this work and provides commentary on the 2017/18 financial year. 
 
 
The purpose of the governance framework 
 
This statement is an acknowledgment on the part of the council that is incumbent on all the stakeholders who play a 
part regarding the organisation of the council to ensure that there is a sound governance framework underpinning the 
work of the organisation. 
 
The governance framework comprises systems and processes for the direction and control of the Authority and its 
activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable 
level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process 
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate 
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. It enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to 
consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 
 

http://www.fylde.gov.uk/
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The governance framework has been in place at the Fylde Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2018 and up 
to the date of approval of the annual report and statement of accounts. 
 
 
The governance environment 
 
Principles 
 
In 2017, the Council has adopted a code of corporate governance (“the Code”) and recognises that effective 
governance is achieved through the core principles enshrined in it as outlined above.  This framework establishes that 
the authority should ensure to keep under review the effectiveness of their governance arrangements and whether 
standards are being attained. 
 
The Council’s corporate governance environment comprises a multitude of systems and processes designed to 
regulate, monitor and control the various activities of the Authority in its pursuit of its vision and objectives. The following 
describes the key elements: 
 
Constitution 
 
The Council’s constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are 
followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. The constitution also identifies 
the principal obligations and functions of the Council. 
 
The constitution and its appendices clearly explain how the different elements of the Council interact and work together. 
It sets out procedure rules to which members and officers must adhere, codes of conduct and protocols. 
 
The constitution builds on model constitutions and guidance maintained by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government. 
 
The Monitoring Officer has a standing obligation to keep the operation of the constitution under review and recommend 
any changes to help better achieve its objectives.  Minor adjustments have been made throughout the course of the 
year and during the forthcoming financial year there will be a three-yearly review of the constitution with the document 
then being put before council for re-adoption.  During the year, members of the Audit and Standards Committee 
reviewed public speaking arrangements within the constitution.  The Protocol on Member/Officer Relations was also 
subject to review.  
 
Political structure 
 
The Council’s governance system changed in May 2015, following a referendum held in May 2014, which resulted in 
a vote in favour of the Council moving from an executive form of governance to a committee system. 
 
The Council, meeting as a body, is responsible under the constitution and the Local Government Act 2000 for setting 
the policy framework and the budget for the authority. It also exercises certain other functions that are reserved to it.  
 
As a result of the change in governance system, the council now operates a committee system with decision-making 
delegated to the council’s committees. There is a mechanism in place for decisions to be referred to the Council. The 
council’s committees comprise Finance and Democracy, Tourism and Leisure, Environment Health and Housing, 
Operational Management, Planning, Licensing, Public Protection and a combined Audit and Standards Committee.  
There is also a cross-party Member Development Steering Group which considers and recommends personal 
development and general training opportunities for elected members together with the well-being of elected members 
in the wider context.   These various member groups have met several times each throughout the course of the year 
to discharge the business of the council.  During the year a joint committee was also established with Blackpool and 
Wyre Councils to discharge economic development functions, within the context of the Council’s overall policy 
framework.   
 
The council is engaged in other partnerships and these arrangements are subject to review on an on-going basis, for 
example, the council’s partnership with the Fylde Citizens Advice Bureau.   
 
During the course of the year the council took the decision to no longer be a constituent member of the Lancashire 
Combined Authority or the Shadow Combined Authority.  However, the council remains committed to working with all 
the Lancashire authorities to establish alternative options for working together on strategic regional initiatives. 
 
Meetings of the committees are open to the public, except where personal or confidential matters may be disclosed. 
Public platform allows members of the public to make a point or raise a question during the course of programme 
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committee meetings. Members of the public also have the facility to ask a question at council meetings and to make 
representations on planning applications being considered by the Planning Committee by pre-registering to do so. 
Members of the Council who are not members of the respective committees can ask questions at committee meetings. 
This helps ensure robust accountability of decisions.    These arrangements have proved effective throughout the year 
with members of the public taking the opportunity to use these various means of communication.  
 
The Council has no scrutiny committee/committees in place; its committee structure provides ample opportunity for 
scrutiny of its processes and policies. 
 
All of the councils work is aligned to its corporate priorities through its committee system.  All reports identify how 
they align to one of the five priorities: value for money; clean and green, vibrant economy, great place to live and 
great place to visit. 
 
The Council’s Audit and Standards Committee deals with conduct, ethics, propriety and declarations of interest. It also 
oversees and determines complaints made against members under the Code of Conduct. The Council has access to 
a number of ‘independent persons’ who assist in upholding high standards. During 2016, the Council re-appointed its 
independent persons after seeking expressions of interest and these individuals have worked closely with the 
Monitoring Officer throughout the year to ensure that high standards of behaviour are maintained. 
 
The Audit and Standards Committee is a point of reference for the Monitoring Officer who investigates or arranges for 
the investigation of any allegations of misconduct in accordance with agreed procedures and statutory regulations.  
The Monitoring Officer has reported to the Audit and Standards Committee during the course of the year. 
 
The monitoring and performance of the Council’s assurance and governance framework is also led by the Council’s 
Audit and Standards Committee. The committee has the responsibility to ensure that the monitoring and probity of the 
Council’s governance framework is undertaken to the highest standard and in line with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidelines. 
 
Decisions on planning, licensing and other regulatory or quasi-judicial matters are taken by committees of the Council 
in accordance with the principles of fairness and natural justice and, where applicable, article 6 of the European 
Convention on Human Rights. Such committees always have access to legal and other professional advice. 
 
Officer structure 
 
The authority implements its priorities, objectives and decisions through officers, partnerships and other bodies. 
Officers can also make some decisions on behalf of the authority under the Scheme of Delegation. 
 
The Chief Executive is designated as the Head of the Authority’s Paid Service. As such, legislation and the constitution 
make him responsible for the corporate and overall strategic management of the authority. He is responsible for 
establishing a framework for management direction, style and standards and for monitoring the performance of the 
organisation. 
 
The Council has designated its Director of Resources as Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer must ensure 
compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations. She must report to the full Council or one of 
the Council’s Committees as appropriate if she considers that any proposal, decision or omission would give rise to 
unlawfulness or maladministration. Such a report will have the effect of stopping the proposal or decision being 
implemented until the report has been considered. No such reports have arisen during the 2017/18 financial year.  
Blackpool Council’s Monitoring Officer acts as Deputy Monitoring Officer for the Council, supporting the Monitoring 
Officer in her role.  There are reciprocal arrangements for investigating standards matters across both these Council’s 
Monitoring Officers.   
 
The Council has designated the Chief Financial Officer as the officer responsible for the proper administration of its 
financial affairs in accordance with Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. The principal responsibilities of this 
officer include financial management, reporting and monitoring financial information, ensuring compliance with financial 
codes of practice including the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  Regular reports have been made to the Councils 
Finance and Democracy, and other Committees as appropriate, throughout the course of the year. 
 
Both statutory officers referred to above have unfettered access to information, to the Chief Executive and to councillors 
so they can discharge their responsibilities effectively. The functions of these officers and their roles are clearly set out 
in the Council’s Constitution.  In particular, the role of the Chief Financial Officer accords with the principles set out in 
the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer.  A protocol establishes the nature and role of the 
Monitoring Officer.  
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Two directors report to the Chief Executive and form the authority’s management team together with the Chief Financial 
Officer and the Council’s Solicitor, who act as specialist advisors.  During 2017/18, the Management Team was 
broadened to include the remaining four Heads of Service.  The Management Team assists the Chief Executive with 
the strategic and overall management of the organisation. The Constitution makes it responsible for overseeing and 
co-ordinating the management, performance and strategic priorities of the authority within the agreed policy framework 
and budget. Each member of the management team takes lead responsibility for major elements of the authority’s 
business. 
 
The Management Team collectively and individually are responsible for securing the economical, effective and efficient 
use of resources as required by the duty of best value.  Powers delegated to each member of Management Team, 
together with other officers, are documented in the constitution. 
 
The Council maintains an independent Internal Audit Service, which operates within the principles set out within the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  These standards were set by a number of internal audit standard 
setters who established a series of standards known as PSIAS and adopted with effect from 1 April 2013.   
 
A Corporate Governance Group has been established to co-ordinate the receipt and actioning of reports from the 
various sources of audit and inspection. The group also is responsible to the Audit and Standards Committee and 
Management Team and to compile, maintain and monitor the Code. 
 
Operational 
 
The Corporate Plan establishes Fylde Council’s corporate priorities and reflects the Council’s principal statutory 
obligations. Performance against the plan is supported by a performance management system and performance 
information is reviewed by the various committees of the council during the course of the year. 
 
The financial management of the Authority is conducted in accordance with the Financial Regulations set out in 
Appendix 4 of the Constitution. The Council has in place a Medium Term Financial Strategy, updated annually, to 
support the aims of the Corporate Plan. 
 
The Council ensures continuous improvement in the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of services through the 
annual service and financial planning process. All services are reviewed annually through the service planning process 
to ensure that they meet the needs of customers and that performance targets for quality improvements are set and 
monitored. The Medium Term Financial Strategy includes targets for efficiency savings where appropriate, to be met 
across all service areas. 
 
Annual budgets are set by the Council in the context of the Medium Term Financial Strategy, and each budget is 
allocated to a named budget holder. The responsibilities of budget holders in financial management are clearly set out 
within Financial Regulations. 
 
A robust process of financial monitoring is in place. Budgets are regularly reviewed, the regularity and depth of attention 
is linked to the risks associated with each budget area. The financial position of the Council is reported on a regular 
basis to the Management Team, to the Council’s Committees, and to full Council. Closer monitoring and appropriate 
action is taken where there is an indication of a likely variance against budget. 
 
In 2016, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (SOLACE) updated its best practice guidance on delivering good governance.  As a result, during the 
course of the year, the council adopted of Code of Corporate Governance which outlined a number of behaviours and 
actions which underpinned the supporting principles.  This document should be read in parallel with that evidential 
baseline.  This document and is evidence base is of public record and therefore is not described in further detail within 
this statement.  
 
The Council had adopted and implemented a Corporate Risk Management Strategy, which incorporates the 
identification and management of existing risks to the achievement of corporate objectives in accordance with 
recognised standards of control assurance. A Corporate Risk Register is in place and is monitored and regularly 
reviewed, combined with action planning for risks identified. Appropriate employees have been trained in the 
assessment, management and monitoring of risks.   
 
A corporate Risk Management Group (RMG) has been established with an effective monitoring and reporting 
mechanism. A member of Management Team is the nominated chair of the RMG. 
 
The Authority’s Risk Management Policy requires that officers understand and accept their responsibility for risk and 
for implementing appropriate controls to mitigate those risks. To this end, service managers are required to incorporate 
a register of risks relevant to their service area within each Directorate’s service plan. 
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In previous years, Internal Audit has provided its annual report to provide an independent and objective opinion on the 
effectiveness and operation of the internal control framework.  As the council’s Head of Internal Audit retired during 
the course of the year, this review will take place once a new post holder is in place which will be in July 2018.  However, 
during November 2016, a peer review of Fylde’s internal audit team was carried out by the Heads of Internal Audit 
from Preston City Council together with South Ribble and Chorley Councils. This was reported to the Audit and 
Standards Committee in March 2017 and reported that following a detailed examination process, the review team 
concluded that the service conformed to the required standards. 
 
The Council has an objective and professional relationship with external auditors and statutory inspectors, together 
with other agencies such as the Local Government Association, as evidenced by the Annual Audit Letter. 
 
Council services are delivered by trained and experienced people. All posts have a detailed job description and person 
specification and training needs are identified through the Personal Development Appraisal Scheme. In addition the 
Council has comprehensive policies and procedures in place, which provide the framework for the operation of its 
services and ensure that its actions and decisions are undertaken within the framework of effective internal control.  
The authority also has a set of core competencies which outline the expected behaviours of employees. 
 
The authority has a zero tolerance policy towards fraud and corruption. The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy provides 
the opportunity for anyone to report their concerns confidentially and enable these to be investigated impartially.  The 
council has a shared Corporate Fraud Team with Preston City Council and training has been delivered to managers 
during the course of the year to ensure that all remain vigilant in preventing fraud.  
 
The authority is committed to working in partnership with public private and voluntary sector organisations where this 
will enhance its ability to achieve its identified aims.  
 
 
Review of effectiveness 
 
The authority supplements the mandatory external audit judgements by assessing itself against the good practice 
elsewhere. This, together with the Authority’s own performance management framework, provides the evidence 
needed to ensure a culture of continuous performance improvement.  The council also conducts satisfaction surveys 
of both residents and employees to use as a further gauge to measure success. 
 
Inherent within the review of internal control arrangements is the need to assess the extent of compliance with statutory 
requirements and the Authority’s rules and regulations, which includes not only its Financial and Contract Procedure 
Rules but also its Scheme of Delegation, and Codes of Conduct. In addition, the Head of Internal Audit is required to 
produce an Annual Report and provide opinion on the effectiveness of the authority’s Audit and Standards Committee 
and evaluate the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes, and taking into account public 
sector internal auditing standards or guidance.  The council has been without a Head of Internal Audit for a part of the 
year following the retirement of the previous officer and this assurance has not been provided.  However, the council’s 
senior auditor has been involved in the deliberations of the Corporate Governance Group with respect to the 
effectiveness of the governance framework and played a part in considering improvements actions.  It is anticipated 
that the audit team will be fully staffed again in the 2018/19 financial year. 
 
Fylde Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its 
governance framework including the system of internal control. The Corporate Governance Group, which comprises 
the Monitoring Officer and Director of Resources, Section 151 Officer, Head of Governance and the Head of Internal 
Audit, has been given the responsibility to annually review the corporate governance framework and to report to Audit 
and Standards Committee on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Code and the extent of compliance with it and its 
work is referenced above. 
 
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the Directors and the respective Heads of Service within the 
Authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of 
Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates. 
 
The Group also receives assurance statements on an annual basis covering each of the Council’s service areas. 
These assurance statements show the extent of compliance within each council’s service areas are concerned with 
key corporate procedures designed to embed good governance and internal control.  In addition, the group has taken 
account of external assurance sources including the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter, ‘ISA 260 report to those 
charged with governance’ and a peer review of the internal audit service conducted against the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards... 
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Internal Audit has carried out an annual programme of reviews as approved by the Audit and Standards Committee. 
The managers of the services and functions reviewed have each agreed actions and priorities arising from the review 
and the achievement of those actions is monitored on an ongoing basis by the Authority’s Internal Audit service.  
 
The Strategic Risk Management Group meets regularly to review achievement of control measures in relation to 
strategic risks identified in the annual risk identification exercise. In addition, Internal Audit carries out an annual review 
of the risk management framework in accordance with the terms of the Risk Management Policy. 
 
We have taken into account the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance 
framework and system of internal control, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of 
the system is set out below. 
 
 
Governance Issues 
 
As a result of the assessment of the effectiveness of governance within the Council, the Corporate Governance Group 
has identified that a sound system of governance exists within the authority. 
 
In 2016/17, the Corporate Governance Group raised three issues within the annual governance statement, namely 
adopting a revised Code of Corporate Governance to reflect the 2016 Delivering Good Governance Framework,  
reviewing and updating business continuity arrangements and plans and refreshing data security and information 
governance arrangements across the authority .  These issues have been addressed and resolved during the course 
of the year with monitoring being undertaken by the Audit and Standards Committee. 
 
During 2018/19, the Corporate Governance Group recommends that governance work should focus on the following: 
 
 

No. Area Requiring Action Senior Responsible 
Officer 

Completion 
Date 

1 Material compliance with General Data 
Protection Regulations 
 

Ian Curtis 25th May 2018 

2 Reviewing the effectiveness of the Project 
Management methodology and consider the 
pertinence of the current format 
 

Alex Scrivens End of 
November 
2018 

3 Ensure good governance arrangements are 
maintained  

Corporate Governance 
Group, together with the 
newly appointed Head of 
Internal Audit 
 

Ongoing  

 
 
 
 
 
Statement 
 
On the basis of the work carried out, which has been reviewed by the Audit and Standards Committee, we are satisfied 
that the Governance Framework is generally effective. We propose over the coming year to address the above matters 
to further enhance our governance arrangements and to prepare for change. We are satisfied that these actions will 
address the need for improvements that were identified in our review and will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of our next annual review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor S Fazackerley 
Leader of the Council 

Allan Oldfield 
Chief Executive 
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GLOSSARY OF ACCOUNTING TERMS 
 
 
This Glossary of Terms is designed to aid interpretation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts. 
 
 

 Accounting Policies 
These specify how transactions and other events should be reflected in financial statements.   

 

 Accruals 
The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred, not as cash is 
received or paid.  The Local Government Pension Scheme Actuary reassesses the rate of employer 
contributions to the pension fund every three years. 

 

 Actuary 
An actuary is an expert on pension scheme assets and liabilities.  

 

 Actuarial Gains and Losses 
Changes in the actuarial deficits or surpluses over time arising from either or both of i) differences between 
the actual events as they have turned out and the assumptions that were made as at the date of the earlier 
actuarial valuation (known as experience gains and losses), and ii) changes in the actuarial assumptions. 

 

 Amortisation 
An annual charge to the revenue account that spreads the cost of an asset over a period of time. 

 

 Appropriation 
A contribution to or from a financial reserve. 

 

 Balances (Or Reserves) 
These represent accumulated funds available to the authority. Some balances (reserves) may be 
earmarked for specific purposes for funding future defined initiatives or meeting identified risks or liabilities. 
There are a number of unusable reserves which are for technical purposes, it is not possible to utilise 
these to provide services. 

 

 Budget 
A statement of the Council’s spending plans for revenue and capital expenditure over a specified period 
of time. 

 

 Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure on the acquisition and/or improvement of an existing Non-Current Asset which adds to, and 
not merely maintains, its value. Expenditure that does not fall within the definition must be charged to a 
revenue account. 

 

 Capital Receipts 
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets which can only be used to repay the original loan or to finance 
new capital expenditure.  Any receipts which have not yet been utilised as described are referred to as 
‘capital receipts unapplied’. 

 

 CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting) 
CIPFA is the professional institute for accountants working in the public services. CIPFA publishes the 
Code, which defines proper accounting practice for local authorities. 

 

 Collection Fund 
The Collection Fund is a separate statutory fund which billing authorities have to maintain. It shows the 
transactions in relation to non-domestic rates, any residual Community Charge and the Council Tax, and 
illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to precepting authorities and the General Fund.  

 

 Community Assets 
Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life and that 
may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are parks and historic buildings. 
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 Consistency 
This is a concept that the accounting treatment of like items, within an accounting period and from one 
period to the next, is the same. 

 

 Contingency  
This is a condition which exists at the balance sheet date, where the outcome will be confirmed only on 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events.  Contingent assets and 
contingent liabilities should not be recognised in the accounting statements but be disclosed by way of 
notes. 

 

 Corporate and Democratic Core 
The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which local authorities engage in specifically 
because they are elected, multi-purpose authorities. The cost of these activities are thus over and above 
those which would be incurred by a series of independent, single purpose, nominated bodies managing 
the same services. There is, therefore, no logical basis for apportioning these costs to services. 

 

 Council Tax 
This is a banded property tax which is levied on domestic properties throughout the country.  The banding 
is based on estimated property values as at 1st April 1991.  The level of tax is set annually by each local 
authority for the properties in its area. 

 

 Creditors 
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, services rendered or goods received for which payment has 
not been made by the balance sheet date. 

 

 Current Assets 
Current assets are items that can be readily converted into cash. 

 

 Current Liabilities 
Amounts which will become payable or could be called in within the next accounting period.  

 

 Current Service Cost (Pensions) 
The increase in the pension liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year. 

 

 Curtailment 
For a defined benefit scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future service of present 
employees or reduces for a number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or all of their 
future service.  Curtailments include termination of employees’ services earlier than expected and 
termination of, or amendment to the terms of, a defined benefits scheme so that some or all future service 
by current employees will no longer qualify for benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits. 

 

 Debtors 
Amounts owed to the Council for work carried out, services rendered or goods provided by the Council for 
which income has not been received by the balance sheet date. 

 

 Debt Redemption 
This is where a debt is repaid early. 
 

 Deferred Credits 
These represent capital income to be received in the future, when disposals have taken place, and 
deferred payments have been agreed. 

 

 Defined Benefit Scheme 
A pension or other retirement benefits scheme other than a defined contribution scheme, where the 
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are not 
directly related to the investments of the scheme. 

 

 Depreciation 
This is the measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the Non-Current Asset that have 
been consumed during the period. 

 

 Direct Revenue Financing 
Resources provided from an authority’s revenue budget to finance the cost of capital projects. 
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 Discontinued Operations 
An operation should be classified as discontinued when the activities related to the operation have ceased 
permanently and the termination has a material effect on the nature and focus of the authority’s operations 
and represents a material reduction in its provision of services. 

 

 Emoluments 
All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses allowances (as far as 
those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits received other 
than in cash. Pension contributions payable by either employer or employee are excluded. 

 

 Estimation Techniques 
The methods adopted to arrive at estimated monetary amounts, corresponding to the measurement bases 
selected for assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves. 

 

 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
These are events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date and the date 
when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. 

 

 Exceptional Items 
Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the authority 
and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence to give fair presentation of 
the accounts. 

 

 Expected Rate of Return on Pensions Assets 
For a funded defined benefit scheme, the average rate of return, including both income and changes in 
fair value but net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining life of the related obligation on the 
actual assets held by the scheme. 

 

 Fair Value 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction.  

 

 Financial Instruments  
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial 
liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial assets and liabilities such as trade 
receivables (debtors) and trade payables (creditors) and the most complex ones such as derivatives and 
embedded derivatives.  

 

 Finance Lease 
This is a lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a Non-Current Asset 
to the lessee. Such a transfer of risks and rewards may be presumed to occur if at the inception of the 
lease the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any initial payment, amounts to 
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset. 
 

 Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) 
FRSs are statements which deal with accounting issues of fundamental importance and general 
application.  They are applicable to all published accounts and compliance is mandatory.  The Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in UK applies FRSs to Councils accounts as appropriate. 

 

 Financial Year 
The Council’s financial year runs from the 1st April to 31st March. 

 

 General Fund 
This is the main revenue account of the Council covering day to day spending on services other than the 
provision of housing. Credited to the fund are charges made by the authority, specific Government and 
other grants and receipts from the Collection Fund. 

 

 Going Concern 
The concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future, in particular 
that the revenue accounts and balance sheet assume no intention to curtail significantly the scale of 
operations. 
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 Government Grants 
Assistance by Government and inter-Government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or 
international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to an authority in return for past or future compliance 
with certain conditions relating to the activities of the authority. 

 

 Heritage Assets 
Heritage assets are defined as assets which have historical, artistic or cultural qualities and that are held 
and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture. 
 

 Historic Cost 
The cost of an asset at the time it was bought. 

 

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
The HRA is an account which includes the expenditure and income arising from the direct provision of 
housing by the Council.   

 

 Impairment 
This is a reduction in the value of a Non-Current Asset below its carrying amount on the balance sheet. 

 

 Infrastructure Assets 
Non-Current Assets that are inalienable, expenditure on which is recoverable only by continued use of the 
asset created. Examples of infrastructure assets are highways and footpaths. 

 

 Intangible Assets 
These are non-financial Non-Current Assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and 
are controlled by the entity through custody or legal rights. Examples are purchased software licences.  

 

 Inventories 
The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks bought but not used at the end of the accounting period, 
held in expectation of future use. E.g. goods or other assets purchased for resale, consumable stores, raw 
materials and components purchased for incorporation into products for sale, products and services in 
intermediate stages of completion, long term contract balances and finished goods. 

 

 Investments - Non Pension Fund 
A long-term investment is an investment that is intended to be held for use on a continuing basis in the 
activities of the authority. Investments should be so classified only where an intention to hold the 
investment for the long term can clearly be demonstrated or where there are restrictions as to the investor’s 
ability to dispose of the investment. Investments, other than those in relation to the pensions fund, that do 
not meet the above criteria should be classified as current assets. 

 

 Investment Properties 
This represents an interest in land and/or buildings in respect of which construction work and development 
have been completed, and which is held for its investment potential, with any rental income being 
negotiated at arm’s length. 

 

 Leasing 
Leasing is a method of utilising assets where a rental charge is paid for a specified period of time, instead 
of outright purchase. 
 

 Liquid Resources 
Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the authority without disrupting its business and 
are either readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the carrying amount, or traded in an 
active market.  

 

 Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA) 
Government initiative whereby demanding performance targets are set to deliver improvements for local 
people through partnerships with district Councils and other organisations. 

 

 Materiality 
The concept that any omission from or inaccuracy in the statement of accounts should not be so large as 
to affect the understanding of those statements by the reader. 
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 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
The minimum amount (as laid down in Statute) that the Council must charge to the accounts each year in 
order to meet the costs of repaying amounts borrowed. 

 

 Non Domestic Rates (NDR) 
NDR is a tax levied on business properties and sometimes known as Business Rates.  This tax is set 
nationally by the Government.  Sums based on rateable values are collected by billing authorities and 
shared between major preceptors, central government, the Police and Crime Commissioner and the billing 
authority. 

 

 Net Book Value 
The amount at which Non-Current Assets are included in the balance sheet i.e. their historical cost or 
current value less the cumulative amount provided for depreciation. 

 

 Net Current Replacement Cost 
This is the cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in its existing 
use, i.e. the cost of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to reflect the current 
condition of the existing asset. 

 

 Net Debt 
The authority’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources.  Where cash and liquid resources exceed 
borrowings, reference should be to net funds rather than net debt. 

 

 Net Realisable Value 
The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or market value in the case of non-operational 
assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset. 

 

 Non-cash Adjustments 
Changes in debtors’ and creditors’ balances over the year 

 

 Non-Current Assets 
Assets that yield benefits to the Council and the services it provides for a period of more than one year. 

 

 Non-distributable Costs 
These are costs that cannot be specifically applied to a service or services and are held centrally, 
comprising certain pension costs and the costs of unused shares of IT facilities and other assets. 

 

 Non-Operational Assets 
Non-Current Assets held by a local authority but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery 
of services or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority. Examples of non-operational assets 
are investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, pending sale or redevelopment. 

 

 Operating Leases 
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. This is a method of financing assets which allows 
the Council to use, but not own an asset. A third party purchases the asset on behalf of the Council, who 
then pay the lessor an annual rental over the life of the asset. Expenditure financed by operating leasing 
does not count against capital allocations. 

 

 Operational Assets 
Non-Current Assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the local authority in the direct delivery of 
those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility.  Examples include Council 
dwellings, other land and buildings, vehicles, plant, equipment, infrastructure assets and community 
assets. 

 

 Past Service Cost 
For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities related to 
employee service in prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or 
improvements to, retirement benefits. 

 

 Post Balance Sheet Events 
These are events, both favourable and unfavourable, which occur between the balance sheet date and 
the date on which the Statement of Accounts is signed by the responsible financial officer. 
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 Precept 
This is a charge levied by one Council which is collected on its behalf by another by adding the precept to 
its own Council Tax and paying over the appropriate cash collected. 

 

 Principal 
The amount of money borrowed, not including interest charges. 

 

 Principal Repayment of Debt 
Repayment of a loan, not including interest charges. 

 

 Prior Year Adjustments 
Prior year adjustments are material adjustments, arising from changes in accounting policies or from the 
correction of fundamental errors. A fundamental error is one that is of such significance as to destroy the 
validity of the financial statements. They do not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of 
accounting estimates made in prior years. 

 

 Projected Unit Method 
An accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make allowance for projected 
earnings. An accrued benefits valuation method is a valuation method in which the scheme liabilities at 
the valuation date relate to: 
 
o the benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased to be active 

members but are entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their dependants, allowing where 
appropriate for future increases, and; 

o the accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date. 
o The accrued benefits are the benefits for service up to a given point in time, whether vested rights or 

not. 
 

 Provision 
These are monies set aside for liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be incurred but the exact 
amount and dates are not currently known. 

 

 Prudence 
The concept that revenue is not anticipated but is recognised only when realisation in cash is reasonably 
certain. Conversely, provisions should be made for all known liabilities. 

 

 Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
This Code was introduced from 1st April 2004.  The basic principle of the Code is that local authorities will 
be free to invest so long as their capital spending plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The Code 
sets out indicators that the authority must use and factors that they must take into account to demonstrate 
that they have fulfilled this objective. 

 

 Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 
A government agency which provides longer-term loans to local authorities at interest rates only slightly 
higher than those at which the government itself can borrow. 

 

 Related Parties 
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period: 
o one party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or 
o the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or 
o one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party to an extent that 

the other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interest; or 
o the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source to such an extent 

that one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interests  
 

 Related Party Transactions 
A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for 
a related party irrespective of whether a charge is made.   

 

 Reserves 
Amounts set aside in one year’s accounts which can be spent in later years.  Reserves are often 
earmarked for specific purposes, including the financing of future capital expenditure, replacement or 
renewals and the funding of future defined Council initiatives.   
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 Residual Amount 
The amount an asset can be sold for, less the cost of selling it. 

 

 Retirement Benefits 
All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees that are 
payable after the completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not include termination benefits 
payable as a result of either (i) an employer’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the 
normal retirement date or (ii) an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for 
those benefits, because these are not given in exchange for services rendered by the employee. 

 

 Revenue Expenditure 
This is money spent on the day-to-day running costs of providing services. It is usually of a constantly 
recurring nature and produces no permanent asset. 

 

 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 
A new term introduced in 2008/09 accounts.  Expenditure that is not capital in accordance with UK GAAP 
is allowed by statute to be funded from capital resources and hence such expenditure would have no 
impact on council tax in the year that it was incurred. 

 

 Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
This is a general grant received from Central Government to contribute towards the cost of providing 
services. It is based on the Government’s assessment of how much an authority needs to spend in order 
to provide a standard level of service. 

 

 Scheme Liabilities 
The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation date. Scheme liabilities 
measured using the projected unit method, reflect the benefits that the employer is committed to provide 
for service up to the valuation date. 

 

 Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) 
A code of practice prepared to provide accounting guidance on financial reporting to stakeholders which 
is designed to enhance the comparability of local authority financial information. The code represents 
proper accounting practice for the purpose of best value reporting. 

 

 Settlement 
An irrevocable action that relieves the employer (or the defined benefit scheme) of the primary 
responsibility for a pension obligation and eliminates significant risks relating to the obligation and the 
assets used to effect the settlement. Settlements include: 
o a lump-sum cash payment to scheme members in exchange for their rights to receive specified 

pension benefits 
o the purchase of an irrevocable annuity contract sufficient to cover vested benefits, and 
o the transfer of scheme assets and liabilities relating to a group of employees leaving the scheme. 

 

 Specific Grants 
Government grants for a particular service. 

 

 Statement of Recommended Practice – (SORP) 
This is the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

 

 Tangible Non-Current Assets 
Assets which have a physical form e.g. buildings, equipment. 

 

 The ‘Code’ 
The ‘Code’ incorporates guidance in line with IFRS, IPSAS and UK GAAP Accounting Standards. It sets 
out the proper accounting practice to be adopted for the Statement of Accounts to ensure they ‘present 
fairly’ the financial position of the Council. The Code has statutory status via the provision of the Local 
Government Act 2003. 
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 Total Cost 
The total cost of a service or activity includes all costs which relate to the provision of the service (directly 
or bought in) or to the undertaking of the activity. Gross total cost includes employee costs, expenditure 
relating to premises and transport, supplies and services, third party payments, support services and 
capital charges. This includes an appropriate share of all support services and overheads which need to 
be apportioned. 

 

 Total Net Worth 
The total net value of resources available to or owned by the Council. 

 

 Unapportionable Central Overheads  
Overheads for which no user now benefits and that are not apportioned to services. 

 

 Useful Life 
The period over which the local authority will derive benefits from the use of a Non-Current Asset. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 




